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The board of directors (the “Board”) of HNA Infrastructure Company Limited ("HNA
Infrastructure”, “Meilan Airport” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) is pleased to announce the operating results, the unaudited financial
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016, which have been
reviewed by the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), and
the prospects for the second half of 2016.
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Six months ended 30 June

BENA=TRHILNEAR

(RMB’000) 2015 Changes
(AR®TIT) —E—FE )
Turnover EERE 571,694 9.73%
Gross profit EH 345,284 12.36%
Net profit attributable to shareholders % 5 {1 4 7| 232,036 9.16%
Earnings per share — basic (RMB) FRER — EK (AREIT) 0.49 10.20%
Net operating cash flow BEESFERE 215,548 82.46%
EBITDA EBITDA 376,785 19.26%

As at

31 December

2015
(RMB'000) NZZE—hEF Changes
(ARBTT) +=ZHA=+—H 28
Total assets BEE 6,962,243 11.62%
Total liabilities BAfE 3,710,852 6.90%
Total equity B R 3,251,391 17.01%
Current ratio MENLL 0.92 7.61%
Gearing ratio BEBEE 53.30% -2.26%
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For the six months ended 30 June 2016, the total revenue of the Group amounted
to RMB627,310,083, representing an increase of 9.73% as compared to the
corresponding period of 2015. Net profit attributable to shareholders amounted
to RMB253,298,200, representing an increase of 9.16% as compared to the
corresponding period of 2015. Earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.54 (the
corresponding period of 2015: earnings per share RMB0.49).

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
CIVIL AVIATION INDUSTRY OF CHINA

With the “One Belt One Road” initiative successfully launched, the civil aviation
industry of China has entered into a stage of rapid internationalization. In the first
half of 2016, the market-oriented pricing reforms for domestic air transportation
continued, gradually extending ranges on passenger air ticket fares of domestic
routes decided by airlines. While the price reform is being pushed through,
low-cost airlines are rapidly emerging to meet the increasingly diversified
demands of the market.

In 2016, China plans to launch 11 key civil aviation projects and 52 extension
projects. It is expected that a total investment of RMB77 billion in fixed asset
will be made across the industry. During the period of the 13th Five-Year Plan,
the total number of aircrafts is expected to have a net increase of thousands of
planes, and that the number of transport airports will increase by 66 to a total
of 272 by 2020.

At the same time, general aviation is also gaining momentum. With the
"Guiding Opinions on Promoting the Development of the General Aviation
Industry” promulgated by the State Council, general aviation was regarded as
a “strategically emerging industrial system”. In the first half of 2016, 21 general
aviation companies were newly established across the industry, bringing the
number of general aviation companies to a total of 302. It is expected that by
2020, the number of general airports will be doubled.

In the first half of 2016, the total traffic turnover of the civil aviation industry of
China was 45.59 billion tons/km, the passenger traffic volume was 230 million
and the cargo and mail traffic volume was 3.133 million tons, representing a

year-on-year growth of 12.5%, 10.8% and 4%, respectively.
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In the first half of 2016, the Civil Aviation Administration of China (“CAAC")
vigorously promoted the concept of “devoted service”, and implemented
specific remedial measures with an objective to resolve issues relating to air
transport services such as air passengers complaints that are mainly focused on
“punctuality, baggage check, ticket agency and quality of in-flight catering” and
achieved impressive results. In the first half of 2016, punctuality rate of the whole
industry was 77.03%, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.86 percentage
points. Complaints in relation to luggage decreased by 8.66 percentage points as
compared with the same period last year. CAAC further regulated the operations
of the platforms for online ticket sales, penalized 91 non-compliance agencies
and off line 39 agencies seriously in violation of regulations, and as a result, the
level of service of China’s civil aviation industry has improved significantly. In
addition, measures such as special passenger transport service and the green
channel for transport of human organs donation are well received by all walks
of the society.

The Group will keep abreast of the development trend of the civil aviation
industry of China in the second half of 2016, put ourselves in a well-prepared
position and make an in-depth study of national policies so as to strive for an
increase in transport capacity by airlines on the premise of safe flight, as well
as further consolidation of Meilan Airport’'s position among the major airports
in China.

TOURISM IN HAINAN PROVINCE

In the first half of 2016, the tourism of Hainan Province maintained rapid growth.
For the period ended 30 June 2016, the number of domestic and foreign tourists
received by the province who stayed overnight amounted to 27.9631 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 12.27%. The total revenue from tourism
was RMB29.622 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.80%.

In response to the call of National Tourism Development Bureau in relation to the
development of comprehensive tourism and to further promote Hainan Province
as an exemplary province for comprehensive tourism, Hainan Province convened
the commencement meeting regarding exemplary province for comprehensive
tourism on 30 March 2016, planning to build Hainan Province into an exemplary
province of comprehensive tourism in 2 to 3 years with a view to facilitating
the improvement and upgrading of international tourist island, achieving a
new level of comprehensive tourism that has characteristic of “brilliant sky lit
up by twinkling stars with the beautiful scenery pervasive in every corner of the
province”.
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Haikou was successfully nominated the title of Top Ten Outstanding Cities
of 2016 “Internet + Travel” in the summit of “Internet + Travel” held in China
on 16 June 2016. In addition, the Hainan Provincial Tourism Development
Commission entered into a strategic cooperation framework agreement with
Tencent Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. on the same day, pursuant to which Hainan
tourism, regarded as a Pilot Zone and Exemplary Zone for the development of
tourism sector of Tencent in the next three years, will create a new model for the
development of tourism in Hainan “Internet + Travel”, boosting the development
of international tourism in Hainan Island and significantly enhancing the

reputation of tourism in Hainan.

KEY TOURISM PROJECTS IN HAINAN PROVINCE

In the first half of 2016, the government at all levels of Hainan Province strived
to drive the development of key tourism projects.

On 30 June 2016, Boao Happy City International Medical & Tourism Pilot Zone,
China'’s first ever state-level development zone integrating international medical
and tourism services, low-carbon ecological community and international
organisations, has signed 5 projects in the World Medical Tourism and Global
Health Congress, bringing the number of projects entering the Pilot Zone to a
total of 25 projects with total investment of RMB27.1 billion up to that moment,
of which the first batch of construction of Hainan Cancer Hospital and Chengmei
International Medical Rehabilitation Center (phase | project) was completed on
17 March 2016, and Kangle Road, Kangxiang Road, Letian Road and Xinyi Road
connecting the Pilot Zone were opened to traffic.

The “Sea Flower Island Tourism Complex Project” with planned investment of over
RMB160 billion and covering a total area of approximately 12,000 mu, is a tourist
resort complex integrating 28 segments such as tourism, culture, conference,
exhibition, business, etc. Itis also a No. 1 industry engineering in western Hainan
and No. 1 industrial projects in Danzhou, with planned investment of RMB5
billion in 2016. As at May 2016, a total investment of RMB2.94 billion was made
to the Sea Flower Island Tourism Complex and other supporting facilities. The
construction of Sea Flower Island is in line with the development strategy of
Hainan international tourist island, which will greatly enhance the image and
quality of coastal tourism in Hainan.
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To boost the construction of international tourist island of Hainan and the
strategic support construction of Haikou under the “One Belt One Road” initiative,
Haikou Cultural Industry Park was officially inaugurated on 30 June 2016, with
21 films and television companies and culture enterprises of Hainan Province
entering to the Haikou Cultural Industry Park. From 2016 to 2018, it is expected
that Haikou Cultural Industry Park will attract over 300 enterprises and provide
more than 5,000 jobs, which makes it a comprehensive cultural industry zone
covering an area of over 60,000 square meters with annual output value of RMB10
billion and tax revenue of RMB500 million.

It is expected that the gradual completion of these key tourism projects will
bring new vitality to the tourism of Northern Hainan and reveal a new era of the

tourism of Hainan Province.

The Group will pay close attention to the development trend of the tourism of the
northern area of Hainan Province, actively cooperate with the local government
to carry out promotion of the characteristic tourism products of the northern
area of Hainan Province, and grasp the opportunities to drive the passenger
throughput of Meilan Airport to hit a new record.

TRANSPORTATION WITHIN THE ISLAND

- As for the water transportation, the new Xiuying Port scheduled to
commence construction in September 2016, will have a planned land area
of approximately over 470,000 square meters and a planned reclamation
area of approximately 130,000 square meters, and it will be built into an
international cruise homeport in Haikou with a complex functional area
comprising ultra-star hotels, tourism and shopping, recreational squares
and parks. This project is expected to be put into full operation by 2020.
The land sand backfill of Sanya Phoenix Island International Cruise Port
Phase Il Project was completed on 30 May 2016. Upon the completion of
this project, the Phoenix Island can accommodate the world’s largest cruise
ship, and the annual reception capacity will reach 2,000,000 tourists, thus it
will become one of the largest international cruise homeports in the world.
The project is expected to be completed by the end of 2016

AN EEERERESERMEN [—F—K]
BUBE ST BRI TSR /EIWKE_%M EA:
—ANERNAZTRERBEXYL - IH2IRFR
ANAREBEAANMEEEARERRE - —T—XF
EZT—)\F - BOXEEZERERMNZ00R A
TREEFHE AR - TEST ISR 5,000 A LA ERIBE

e UREREZ XK - FEEAREI00
BT - BIRARESEITRENUCEXRER R

ELEREEEB MRS ER - FEEHE A SR
PEERREILREZELANE D - MEISm K
BEHNEE -

AEBBTBEIBIRIREERES - BF
EHBFANEEEILFEREER  BIER
Wd - BHXBRERERTEERFS -

ERARE

— KEFE - FAERZZ—AFHLARIAH
FEB - BRKBEESRE B O47488
FHARRIBEEREEN13BF K - £18
EB)E - IREEY - KBRS AEAR B
WINEEE - A AE OB EHEE - 2B H
FEF T _TFRHRAEE - =D EES
B EGE _—_HIRER_E— R A
=T HERMESEED IE - ZKREBERS
AEFARTR ERANSERR - FRE
BERFBE NEDNROOB AR - KAZIREAR
BERBHEE L, —  c ZBEBF S —F
[K5ETL o



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Interim Report 2016

Management, Discussion ond Anodysic § 8 R 1316 8 5 #

As for the highways, in the first half of 2016, Hainan Province vigorously
promoted the construction of key transportation projects including “One
Bridge and Four Highways”. Qiongzhong- Wuzhishan- Ledong highway
has a total length of 128.8 km, and with the construction of the left
line of Linling tunnel completed on 30 June 2016, it is symbolized that
the construction of this project has entered into an accelerated stage.
The construction of Pugian bridge, Wenchang to Pugian coastal tourism
highway, Wenchang to Boao highway and Wanning to Yangpu highway
has also been accelerated. In addition, Haixiu Expressway, which starts from
the West Section of Guoxing Avenue, Haikou in the east, and connects to
the Railway Station in the west, has a total length of 18.42 km and a total
investment of RMB7.05 billion. As a key construction project of Hainan
Province and Haikou City, the Phase | main bridge and 7 pairs of ramps have
been effectively put into operation on 20 July 2016, and the whole project
is expected to be completed in 2016.

As for the investment and construction of airports, Qionghai Boao Airport
was put into operation on 17 March 2016, and the Phase Il expansion has
been officially launched. The runway is planned to be extended to 3,200
meters, and a separate new international terminal is planned to be built, and
relevant auxiliary facilities will be completed in accordance with 4E flight
area standards. The expansion of the airport is expected to be completed
before the annual meeting of Boao Forum for Asia in 2017. Yongshujiao
Airport, which is located in the Nansha Islands, successfully completed
the flight test on 6 January 2016. Yongxingdao Airport, which is located in
the Xisha Islands, and relevant supporting facilities for civil aviation such
as terminals have been initially completed, and its civil flights have been
launched for trial operation and are expected to be launched into operation
in 2016. These two airports located in Sansha City will enhance the air
traffic service capability in the South China Sea region, and promote the
simultaneous development of tourism in Sansha at the same time.
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OFFSHORE DUTY FREE

In the first half of 2016, with the further unwinding of Hainan’ offshore duty free
policies, the sales of duty free commodities of Haimian Haikou Meilan Airport
Duty-Free Shop Co., Ltd. (88 EBE S ERIEBR AR (the “Meilan
Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop”) once again reached a record high.

For the six months ended 30 June 2016, Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop
recorded sales revenue of RMB757.0022 million, a total number of shopping
tourists of 393,697 and a total sales number of commodities of 1,227,007,

representing a year-on-year increase of 10.61%, 6.66% and 16.54%, respectively.

As at 20 April 2016, the Hainan offshore duty-free policies have been implemented
for five anniversary years. During the past five years, it has gradually driven the
transformation and upgrading of tourism and economic development in Hainan
by adjusting duty-free quota, enriching product offerings and changing the way
of claim and supervision. Below is a review of four adjustments in the offshore
duty-free policies in the past five years:

On 20 April 2011, the offshore duty-free shopping policies were officially
implemented.

On 1 December 2012, the offshore duty-free shopping policies were adjusted
to increase the duty-free quota from RMB5,000 to RMB8,000, and the limit on
the number of certain commodities for each purchase was loosened gradually.
In the course of policy implementation afterwards, in order to further provide
travellers with convenient shopping experience, the shopping model featuring
“Claim Upon Purchase, Tax Return after Payment” was adopted to improve the
convenience of consumers’ shopping of duty free commodities.

On 20 March 2015, 17 kinds of consumer goods including infant formula milk
powder, espresso and health food were added as duty free commodities, and
the limit on the number of 10 kinds of hot sellers including perfumes, cosmetics
and watches for each purchase were relaxed, with an aim to cater for tourists’
various needs for duty free commodities.
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On 1 February 2016, the offshore duty-free policies were adjusted once again
to loosen the limit on the number of purchases for non-local tourists, and the
aggregate purchase value of duty free commodities allowed for each tourist
each year shall not exceed RMB16,000. In the meantime, the online sales service
for duty free commodities was also launched. This move further released the
effect of the Hainan offshore duty-free policies, providing new impetus for the

development of tourism and economy in Hainan Province.

Looking back to the past five years, the sales of duty free commodities in Hainan
increased steadily thanks to the growing effect of stimulus policies. According to
relevant statistics, two duty free shops in Haikou and Sanya realized total sales
of RMB997 million in 2011, RMB2.367 billion in 2012, RMB3.369 billion in 2013,
RMB4.33 billion in 2014 and RMB5.54 billion in 2015, representing a year-on-year
growth of 1.37 times, 42%, 28% and 28.3%, respectively. As at the end of 2015
(= H
and Meilan Airport duty-free shop posted total sales of duty free

Sanya Haitangwan duty-free shop (Sanya International Duty-free City
PR R A HR))
commodities amounting to RMB16.6 billion and more than 5,730,000 shoppers of
duty free commodities. Offshore duty-free shopping has truly become a “golden

visiting card” for touring in Hainan in five years.

The sustainably flourishing development of duty-free industry in Hainan Province
has not only enhanced the international recognition of Hainan, but also boosted
the rapid growth of local tourism and consumption. It has also, directly or
indirectly, driven the continued surge in the passenger traffic of Meilan Airport.
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BUSINESS AND REVENUE REVIEW
OVERVIEW

In the first half of 2016, in compliance with the industrial safety at work objective
of the State, the Group has strengthened and improved its safety management
to ensure a safe and stable environment for the operation of Meilan Airport.
The Group also successfully fulfilled the transportation security tasks for major
events, including the Boao Forum for Asia Annual Conference, and has won high

recognitions from various sectors.

The Group continued its success in brand building in the first half of 2016.
Leveraging on its excellent staff performance, professional image and warm
hospitality service, the Group was nominated as one of the “Best Regional Airports
in China” by SKYTRAX, and became the first domestic airport to be awarded
"China’s Best Airport with Excellent Staff Performance” in two consecutive years.
Meanwhile, the Group also made significant progress in its development as a
green and efficient airport and obtained the “Green Efficient Airport Award”
at the 6th Airport Construction and Development International Summit. In the
second half of 2016, the Group will continue to implement its key renovation
project of becoming a SKYTRAX five-star airport, aiming to achieve the goal of
five-star airport within this year.

In the first half of 2016, the Group continued to expand the construction of
intelligent airport with primary focus on three aspects, including security, services
and operation, among which, a series of security systems including access
control system, CCTV monitoring system, covert alarming system, 4G wireless
station site and panoramic surveillance system have been launched. Leveraging
on CCTV monitoring, biometric identification, numbers and plates identification
and satellite positioning technologies, security management of Meilan Airport
has been effectively enhanced. The one-stop passport control system has been
deployed, which will change the mode of travel via airport by passengers
and provide more convenient travel service to them. The Group commenced
development of the production and operation management system V2.0, which
will optimise the existing systems and improve Meilan Airport operation efficiency
by analysing, processing and transmitting operation management data and flight
information.
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The feasibility report in respect of the Phase Il expansion project of Meilan Airport
has been approved by the National Development and Reform Commission,
and this project broke ground for laying a cornerstone on 18 November 2015.
In order to develop this project successfully and smoothly, certain procedures
including land expropriation, demolishing and relocation, project design, project
examination and approval, budgeting and procurement, and engineering
construction have commenced simultaneously. Meanwhile, the Company is
applying on a planned basis for loans related to provide sufficient funds for Phase
Il expansion project jointly with Haikou Meilan International Airport Company

Limited (the “Parent Company”).

The terminal complex project containing three major business portions, namely
parking building, commercial building (including duty-free and duty-imposed
commercial portions) and hotel building, completed topping-out on 20 June
2016 and is expected to open for business within 2016. In order to take full
advantage of the terminal complex being adjacent with the terminal building,
the Company will create a security area within the terminal complex equipped
with airport facilities of the same specifications as the terminal building, so that
the terminal complex can help the terminal complex to divert passenger traffic
and further enhance the security capacity of Meilan Airport.

In addition, in the first half of 2016, adhering to the “people-oriented” principle,
the Group continued to organise comprehensive caring activities for its staff
by enriching their cultural life with an aim to increase their cohesiveness and
sense of belonging. As for cultural and sports activities, the Group organised
the First Staff Sports Games of Meilan Airport from 16 July 2016 to 19 July 2016.
Meanwhile, the Group also established football and basketball clubs to organise
periodic club activities and friendly matches. As for the leisure life of the staff,
the Group organised an outing activity themed “Outbound for Happiness” and
birthday parties for the staff. With respect to humanity and caring, the Group
established “Meilan Airport Caring Fund”, sent condolences to and visited needy
and sick leave colleagues, cheered up front-line colleagues at holidays and
conducted periodic activities such as health care seminars to build a "Happy
Meilan Family”. At the same time, the Group spared no effort in social welfare
activities such as participation in blood donation, visiting charity houses, tree

planting and actively performed its social responsibility.
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OVERVIEW OF AVIATION BUSINESS

Against a backdrop of overall rapid development of the civil aviation industry,
together with various favourable factors such as the development of Hainan
Tourism International Island and offshore duty-free policy, on 7 July 2016, Meilan
Airport has achieved passenger throughput of over 10 million for six consecutive
years. The Group hit a record throughput high this year with 172 days earlier than
2011, when the record of over 10 million was achieved for the first time, and
37 days earlier than 2015, respectively. The Company continued to strengthen
its marketing efforts in major aviation markets. The market expansion efforts
were conducted in three major directions, namely “seek favourable policies
from the government, tap customers from the market and secure aviation
capacity from the airlines”. To avoid the lower flight execution rates during the
summer and autumn off-peak flight season of previous years, the Company
entered into cooperation agreements with 24 airlines to increase the number
of flights by airlines, thereby promoting steady growth in flight volume and
passenger traffic during the off-peak seasons and successfully meeting the
market anticipation of “busy during off-peak season”. In June 2016, the Company
realised passenger throughput of 1.183 million in a single month, representing
a year-on-year increase of 21.96%. This was the first time for Meilan Airport to
record a single-month passenger throughput of over one million in June since
commencement of operation of the airport.

In the first half of 2016, Meilan Airport operated 201 originating routes,
representing a year-on-year increase of 75 routes, including 188 domestic routes,
3 regional routes and 10 international routes. These routes cover 104 navigable
cities, including 92 domestic cities, 3 regional cities and 9 international cities.
There are 37 airlines operating at Meilan Airport, including 28 domestic airlines, 3
regional airlines and 6 international airlines. Since entering into the summer and
autumn flight seasons in 2016 (from 27 March to 30 June 2016), the overall flight
execution rate stood at 80.26% and passenger throughput increased by 18.51%
as compared with the summer and autumn flight seasons in 2015.

The Group scientifically and rationally formulated customized marketing strategies
and targets, actively participated in various domestic tourism market promotion
and overseas routes forums to introduce Haikou air travel market, resulting in
constantly optimised coverage density and service range of our route network.
The Group newly launched “Haikou- Chongging- Rome” intercontinental route,
introducing flights between Hainan and Europe for the first time. Route network
now covers major capital cities and major tourist cities all over Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, as well as Russia, Japan, South Korea, Thailand,
Singapore, Italy, etc. and achieved remarkable results. For the six months ended
30 June 2016, international and regional passenger throughput amounted to
322,700, representing a year-on-year growth of 21.18%.
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Details of the aviation traffic throughput of the first half of 2016 and the
comparative figures with the corresponding period of 2015 are set out below:

—F N LEERERBREHERAEE
BEL AT ¢

|

First half of
2015 Change

—_ZT—hF
E¥F BE)
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights)  FR#HBFELRK (2£R) 63,117 11.26%
in which: domestic Hih: BR 60,575 11.32%
international and regional B B K2 db [ 2,542 9.76%

Passenger throughput

(headcount in ten thousand) REEHE (BAKX) 845.07 14.96%
in which: domestic Hih B 818.44 14.76%
international and regional B B8 Nt [em 26.63 21.18%
Cargo throughput (tons) EHRTRULE (M) 137,546.40 9.11%
in which: domestic Hep: QR 132,167.10 9.21%
international and regional B PR K 3 [ 5,379.30 6.57%

The Group's revenue from aviation business for the six months ended 30 June
2016 was RMB357,635,509, representing an increase of approximately 16.99% as
compared to the corresponding period of 2015. Details are as follows:

HE-Z—XREXNA=ZTHIEAER  KEEM
e EEI A B ARE35763550970 0 W T —TH
FRIEIE R 4916.99% @ FIEWT

Change
over the
corresponding

Amount period of

(RMB) 2015

k- B-Z2—AfF

(ARMT) [ HA % B

Passenger service charges KB R E 138,621,709 13.16%
Refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund EmzEEESRERMAM 114,120,285 17.22%
Ground handling service income Hh T IR 75 & 57,726,146 30.88%
Fees and related charges on aircraft takeoff and landing  TRA&AE[E M AHRE I & 47,167,369 12.98%
Total revenue from aviation business i 22 BE A A UL 357,635,509 16.99%
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OVERVIEW OF NON-AVIATION BUSINESS

In the first half of 2016, the non-aviation business of the Group maintained a
stable increase. For the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group achieved
a revenue from its non-aviation business of RMB269,674,574, representing an
increase of 1.39% as compared with the corresponding period of 2015. The
growth in revenue from the non-aviation business was mainly due to the
substantial increase in the franchise income of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free

Shop and the VIP room income.
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269,674,5747C M- E— A E R HEAL K£1.39% o
EMEEBBANBREFESENERKISHS
BRIERTEEERANMEEERAKN KRG
E °

Changes
over the
corresponding

Amount period of

(RMB) 2015

Eox- B-—Z2—AfF

(AE#T) EH 2 E

Franchise income B SR A 156,066,065 15.75%
Freight and packaging income BERBEIRA 42,799,102 -40.77%
Rental income HeBA 18,256,191 -3.64%
VIP room income BEEEWA 10,507,918 45.70%
Parking fee income FEIFZUIA 9,256,545 7.81%
Other income H U A 32,788,753 35.73%
Total revenue from non-aviation business M= R AN 269,674,574 1.39%

Franchise Income

In the first half of 2016, the franchise income of the Group aggregated to
RMB156,066,065, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.75%, which was
mainly attributable to factors such as the increase of shopping quota of offshore
duty free commodities due to the further unwinding offshore duty free policies,
and innovative promotion activities of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty Free Shop,

resulting in the substantial growth in the franchise income of the Group.

Freight and Packaging Income

In the first half of 2016, the freight and packaging income of the Group
aggregated to RMB42,799,102, representing a year-on-year decrease of 40.77%,
which was due to the expiration of the freight service contracted by the Company
with Hainan Airlines Company Limited.
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Rental Income

In the first half of 2016, the rental income of the Group aggregated to
RMB18,256,191, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.64%, which was
mainly affected by the terminal building reconstruction project, which resulted
in a decrease in the rentable space resources and the lower area-effectiveness

for commercial use.

VIP Room Income

In the first half of 2016, the VIP room income of the Group aggregated to
RMB10,507,918, representing a year-on-year increase of 45.70%, which was mainly
attributable to the Company’s great efforts to innovate the VIP service business
and explore the VIP service market, leading to an increase in the reception of
VIP customers.

Parking Fee Income

In the first half of 2016, the parking fee income of the Group aggregated to
RMB9,256,545, representing a year-on-year increase of 7.81%, which was mainly
due to the fact that the Company strengthened the management of the parking
lot and its surrounding areas to fully utilise the existing parking resources, and
that there was a continuous increase in the passenger traffic of Meilan Airport,

which resulted in a growth in parking fee income.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
ASSET ANALYSIS

As at 30 June 2016, the total assets of the Group amounted to RMB7,771,188,846,
among which, the current assets amounted to RMB1,475,811,455, and the
non-current assets amounted to RMB6,295,377,391. The total assets increased
by 11.62% as compared with that as at 31 December 2015.

COST AND EXPENSE ANALYSIS

In the first half of 2016, the Group’s operating costs amounted to RMB230,749,265,
and the administrative expenses amounted to RMB31,218,565, totalling
RMB261,967,830, which represented a year-on-year increase of 8.18%. The
increase in costs and expenses was attributable to:

(1) the staff cost recorded an increase of RMB10,067,810 as compared with
that of the corresponding period of 2015 due to a normal rise in the
remuneration level and increase in staff headcount;
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(2) the expenses of dispatched employees increased by RMB9,063,706 due to
an increase in the number of dispatched employees and an improvement
in the remuneration level in line with the business development of the
Company;

(3) the depreciation cost of the Company increased by RMB14,918,021, which
was due to the commencement of operation of the West Gallery and the
auxiliary facilities.

In the first half of 2016, the finance expenses of the Group amounted to
RMB44,790,586, representing an increase of RMB33,426,935 as compared with
that of the corresponding period of 2015. The increase was mainly due to an
increase in loans and corporate bonds and the exchange loss resulted from a

rise in the USD exchange rate.

GEARING RATIO

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had total current assets of RMB1,475,811,455,
total assets of RMB7,771,188,846, total current liabilities of RMB1,743,517,819
and total liabilities of RMB3,966,749,758. As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s gearing
ratio (total liabilities/total assets) was 51.04%, representing a decrease of 2.26%
as compared to that as at 31 December 2015. The decrease was caused by an
increase in the other capital reserve attributable to Group as a result of the
increased capital reserve of HNA Airport Holdings Group Company Limited ("HNA
Airport Holdings"), an associated company of the Company, following additional
capital injection from its minority interest.

PLEDGE/CHARGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group's long-term borrowing of US$250,000,000 from Taiwan syndication
was secured by the 51% equity interests in Hainan Meilan International Airport
Cargo Co,, Ltd. ("Meilan Cargo”) held by the Group and certain land use rights
of the Group with book value amounting to RMB8,345,359. As at 30 June 2016,
outstanding balance of the borrowing was US$139,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB921,736,800).

Certain land use rights for the construction of the West Gallery and the
international terminal have been pledged to secure a long-term borrowing
granted to the Group and the Parent Company (being the joint borrowers) by
China Development Bank. As at 30 June 2016, the balance of such long-term
borrowing was RMB545,000,000.
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On 2 July 2015, the Company entered into an arrangement with a trust whereby
the Company obtained financing from the trust of RMB1,100,000,000 under which
the Company’s entitlements to aviation service income from 1 May 2015 to 30
April 2020 were pledged to the trust for issuing an asset-backed security. As at
30 June 2016, the remaining balance of the external borrowings of the asset-back
security ("ABS") amounted to RMB950,907,964.

On 27 April 2016, the Company raised a borrowing of US$24,508,400 at an interest
rate of 0.20% from Nanyang Commercial Bank (China) Limited (“Nanyang Bank”),
which is secured by the fixed deposits of RMB160,000,000. As at 30 June 2016,
the balance of the borrowing is US$24,508,400 (equivalent to RMB162,520,102).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

As at 30 June 2016, the total issued share capital of the Company was
RMB473,213,000. The long-term liabilities of the Group primarily consisted of bank
loans, ABS borrowings, corporate bonds and long-term payables. Currently, the
Group has borrowings from Taiwan syndication of US$139,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB921,736,800) with an interest rate of Libor (“London InterBank Offered Rate”)
plus 3.3%; the ABS borrowings of RMB950,907,964; seven-year corporate bonds
of RMB800,000,000 with coupon rate of 7.8% per annum issued in 2012; three-
year corporate bonds of RMB500,000,000 with coupon rate of 7.3% per annum
issued in 2016 and long-term payables under finance leases of RMB85,550,063.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND THEIR
PERFORMANCES

As at 30 June 2016, the Company held 24.5% equity interests in HNA Airport
Holdings. In the first half of 2016, the Company recorded an investment income
of RMB24,337,214 based on the net profit attributable to parent company of
HNA Airport Holdings.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

As at 30 June 2016, the Company did not carry out any new and major
acquisitions and disposals.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had a total of 787 employees, representing an
increase of 54 employees as compared to the beginning of this year. Such
increase was mainly due to normal staff recruitment. Employees of the Group
are remunerated based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practices. The Group reviews its remuneration policy and packages on a regular
basis. Bonuses and commissions may be awarded to employees as incentives

based on performance assessment.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE FIXED
DEPOSITS

As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have any entrusted deposits and overdue
fixed deposits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The businesses of the Group are principally conducted in RMB, except certain
revenue from aviation business, purchase of equipment and consultation fee
which are denominated in US$ or HKS. The dividends to H-share holders are
declared in RMB but paid in HKS. As at 30 June 2016, the deposit denominated
in USS of the Group amounted to US$352,548 (equivalent to RMB2,337,815).
Meanwhile, the balance of the US$ denominated syndicated borrowing from
Taiwan syndication to finance the construction of the terminal complex project
was US$139,000,000 (equivalent to RMB921,736,800). The balance of the US$
denominated borrowing from Nanyang Bank was US$24,508,400 (equivalent to
RMB162,520,102). The interests and principals of these two borrowings should
be borne by the Group. Therefore, any fluctuation in the exchange rate of RMB
against USS will affect the financial performance of the Group. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk.

BE RFHMBUR
RZZB-—RERNA=1TRH AEBEREAES
787N » ELEFEMELL IR NSAA - B EE MR E
REFMABSIE - AREREEES TIERA
BERERHITRENG TERERM - MBEER
REEAEEPRT - RIBFEB W TIERRF
i EEXRSRELEALES  BLHBIHEA
RIAEER) ©

ZRERRBHERER

RZE—RFRA=+H  AEERBEZFAHEX
NBHE ER -

HREE
R-B—REXA=TA  AEEAEEARS
B -

S EE R B
BE DB - B E R R X
BEMETLBESN - AREBHEBE LA

REETEE - HRBRREOBRFIDEAAREKS
K> ABEIN - RZE—XNENA=Z1+8
REBUAETTHEMIRITE KB A352,548%
7T (e ARM23378157T) » A - 1R 15 uh AT
IRABEREENTE  HAEREBANNUET
SHEMIRTE FRERE139,000000% T (A AR
#921,736,8007T) ¢ #EF F IRITIE AR AEITRT
EH IR 1T B AR 58245084005 0 (A AR
162,520,1027T) ° Wt MEERMWEBEF SN A
HAEBEFREEE  Fit - AREHEETHESK
RER SRR ERNEENBESR - AEELK
RIS AT AR BAG 49 LA ST i INES TE 3[R o

21



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Interim Report 2016

Management, Discussion ond Anodysic § 8 R 1316 8 5 #

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term interest bearing borrowings
including long-term borrowings, corporate bonds and long-term payables.
Financial liabilities issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s long-term interest bearing
borrowings with floating rates were mainly USS-denominated bank borrowings
granted by Taiwan syndication amounted to US$139,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB921,736,800). Any changes in Libor and interest rate adjustment by the
People’s Bank of China will affect the interest expenses and results of the Group.

NO OTHER MATERIAL CHANGE

Other than those discussed in this interim report, there has been no material
change in relation to the information disclosed in the Company’s 2015 annual
report in accordance with Rule 32 set out in Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HK Stock Exchange”).

PROGRESS OF THE RENEWAL OF “FRANCHISE
CONTRACT” AND “VENUE LEASING CONTRACT”
WITH MEILAN AIRPORT OFFSHORE DUTY-FREE
SHOP

The franchise contract in respect of leasing of venue for offshore duty-free
business and the Meilan Airport venue leasing contract (collectively, the
"Duty-Free Contracts”) entered into between the Group and Meilan Airport
Offshore Duty-Free Shop have been expired. Both parties are in the process of
friendly negotiations for the renewal of the Duty-Free Contracts and have reached
a consensus regarding key terms.

With the effect of the Hainan offshore duty-free policies continuously extending,
the Meilan Airport, as always, shows its immense support to the development
of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop. Meanwhile, Meilan Airport Offshore
Duty-Free Shop will enhance the “traveling and shopping experience (#£8&77)"
of the tourists passing through Meilan Airport by offering quality services and
rich variety of duty-free commodities.
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In recent years, benefited from seamless mutual cooperation, the current
operating area of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop has expanded to
7,804 square meters from 2,200 square meters at business inception. The sales
performance of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop increased from RMB0.38
billion in 2012 to RMB1.239 billion in 2015, and the sales amount of duty-free
commodities was recorded at RMBO0.757 billion in the first half of 2016. It is
expected that the sales target of RMB1.5 billion will be achieved in 2016.

Both parties acknowledge that the win-win situation will be reached through
sustainably perfect integration of resources from the airport and the duty-free
shop under the basis of mutual benefits in the future such that the interests of
the companies and their shareholders will be safeguarded. Therefore, both parties
will try to reach the Duty-Free Contracts at arm'’s length basis as soon as possible.

ACQUISITION PROGRESS

According to the announcement of the Company dated 13 November 2015 and
the circular of the Company dated 4 December 2015:

On 13 November 2015, the Company and the Parent Company entered into an
equity transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”), pursuant to which,
the Company agreed to acquire 100% of the equity interest in Hainan Meilan
Airport Assets Management Co., Ltd. ("Meilan Airport Assets Management”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent Company, at a consideration of
RMB604,800,000.

The consideration of the acquisition was determined with reference to the
valuation of the total assets of Meilan Airport Assets Management as at 30
September 2015, being the base date of evaluation, conducted by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited. The payment of the entire consideration of
the equity transfer by the Company is subject to the fulfillment of the capital
contribution obligation by the Parent Company to Meilan Airport Assets
Management.
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The consideration was paid by two installments as follows:

(i) RMB574,560,000 (being 95% of the total consideration) shall be payable
within 60 business days from the date of approval of the Equity Transfer
Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder by the
extraordinary general meeting; and

(i) RMB30,240,000 (being 5% of the total consideration) shall be payable within
15 business days from the date of completion of the necessary industrial
and commercial registrations and filings relating to the Equity Transfer
Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder in the Industrial
and Commercial Bureau of Hainan Province.

As at the date of this interim report, the Company paid the first installment
of the consideration to the Parent Company in accordance with the Equity
Transfer Agreement. Upon the fulfillment of the capital contribution obligation
by the Parent Company, the Company will pay the second installment of the
consideration in accordance with the Equity Transfer Agreement.

As at the date of this interim report, the Parent Company was conducting
the assets transferring procedure in accordance with relevant provisions. The
Company will notify the shareholders of the Company and potential investors
with the information on the latest progress under the Equity Transfer Agreement
in the future, and make disclosure timely to the public according to the provisions
of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group completed the construction work for the Group's risk management
framework and identified key risk points in “Promotion Work over the Risk
Management and Internal Control System” of 2015. In the first half of 2016, the
Group has actively conducted scientific analysis, assessed and determined the
risk prevention/management procedures towards the recognized risk points, in
order to organize systematically, mitigate and monitor potential risks and to build

a governance environment with risks under control and compliant operation.

In the second half of 2016, the Group will proceed with “Promotion Work over the
Risk Management and Internal Control System”, further optimise the framework,
refine schemes, and carry out this task as the routine work of the Group. The
Group will pay attention to, keep track of and effectively fix problems to lay
a solid foundation for the healthy, rapid and sustainable development of the
Group in the future.
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Effect of risk-counter measures

BREHNR

Risk of flight release
normal rate
FIEART
ERZER

Reduced normal rate of flight
release and flight on time rate due
to airline defaults (including aircraft
maintenance, flight dispatching, etc.)
or non-airline factors (e.g. weather
conditions, air traffic control,
mechanical trouble, passenger, etc.)
may result in that the CAAC reduced
the flight number or restricted the
flight number increase of Meilan
Airport, which may reduce or make
passenger traffic volume unable
to grow, thus leading to a major
adverse impact on the economic
benefit of the Company.
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Speed up the exploitation of airspace resources
and increase air routes;

MREHERFRE - E M -

Improve the efficiency of passengers boarding
and efficiency of flight operation; increase
parking aprons by promoting the construction
of airport infrastructure, and optimize the
distribution of lounge bridges and dispatching of
shuttle buses by IT system construction so as to
further improve the efficiency of flight operation;
improve the professional skills of the first-line
employees by arranging professional skill training
and qualification certification so as to improve
the working efficiency of the service personnel;
and improve the efficiency of passenger boarding
by installing advanced security inspection
equipment and other intelligent equipment in
Meilan Airport; and
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R RN ETEERE  REEINEER
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Raise the utilization rate of daily lower-peak time
by focusing on the cooperative development
with airlines to cultivate the air routes in lower-
peak time period.
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Become the first Central and Southern
civil aviation airport to operate with
‘A Combination of Twin Towers" and
improve the normal rate of flight release.
RARMTEREER [$EES] &
1% MR ERRERRR ©

As of 30 June 2016, Meilan Airport’s
normal rate of flight release was 77.72%
and normal rate of originating flight
release was 75.16%, representing a
year-on-year increase of 25.91% and
32.61%, respectively ranking second and
fourth respectively in flight schedule
and resource allocation in Central and
Southern airports. A record high normal
rate of flight was registered.
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Key risk Counter measures taken
Serial No. Names of risks descriptions in the first half of 2016 Effect of risk-counter measures
3 Bl BRERHL ZER-AELYFRYER RREHHF
2 Risk of media malice I the event of any adverse or false (1)  Establish a systematic public opinion collection The Company established a positive

26

speculation and

publicity
RERE

ERER

IR

news report or negative information
about the Company occurs, the
dearth of standard and efficient
crisis to public relation contingency
mechanism may lead to failure
for effectively monitoring public
opinions, and timely guiding the
public opinion and resolving the
contradictions, which bring a major
adverse impact on the corporate
brand image or reputation.
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(1)

and reporting mechanism. Engage university
teachers, quality association personnel, excellent
company employees and media reporters as
social supervisors to supervise the operation and
service quality of Meilan Airport, and radically
improve the quality of services and services level
of Meilan Airport so as to inhibit the occurrence
of incidents affecting the corporate image;
BIZGNERREERED - BEREH
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Establish a handling mechanism to tackle public
opinions and public relation crisis. Keep a good
cooperation relationship with the professional
public relation companies so as to be able to
work out a solution to public relation crisis in

case of any malice speculation incident; and
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Actively carry out and partake in the activities
favorable for displaying the positive image and
increase the social reputation of the Company,
and encourage/organize the social benefit and
environment protection activities.

BEAE  2EFNRLERRAIALE
HEARNRNEBENEY BB/ BRFRE
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corporate image through active
practising of green and low-carbon
strategy, and organising staff to carry
out voluntary tree-planting campaign to
transmit positive energy.
ARABBERBTREERE
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Due to the establishment of the
mechanism of public opinions and
public relation crisis, there were
72 reports about Meilan Airport,
representing a year-on-year increase
of 26%, including 27 positive reports,
representing a year-on-year increase
of 93%, and 2 negative reports,
representing a year-on-year decrease of
33% in the first half of 2016.
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fund and the airplane take-off and
landing and other relevant charges
standard due to the change in
government policy or the issuance
of new regulation may cause a major
impact on the aviation business revenue
and even the total profit of the Company.
ARBAERRE L oA
B SHRAERASRERLL
fil - Femeiehs BRI BIRER A
21t MRHERAREEBRA
NERRUAEKEAZE -

information collection and reporting mechanism
to facilitate the management and relevant
departments in timely grasping the policy
changes trend and taking measures to cope with;

and
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By rationally planning the terminal function
layout and updating the commercial positioning,
the Company may increase the non-aviation
business revenue from the franchise, freight &
packing, rent and parking lot so as to reduce the
dependence on aviation business revenue.
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Key risk Counter measures taken
Serial No. Names of risks descriptions in the first half of 2016 Effect of risk-counter measures
3 RRER BREREL ZE-REL¥FRUER RREHHF
3 Policy risk Any change in the return subsidy (1)  Collect policy information and take timely As the implementation of Interim
EEHEN proportion of civil aviation development measures. The Company has established a policy ~ Measures for the Collection, Use and

Management of the Civil Aviation
Development Fund ({EMERE X &
B ERERETHE)) ended on
31 December 2015, the Group actively
applied for the extension of such policy
for the purpose of continuing enjoy the
refund policy under the Civil Aviation
Development Fund half a year before
its expiration. On 31 December 2015,
the Group received Notice by Ministry
of Finance over the Issues regarding the
Civil Aviation Development Fund and
the Tourism Development Fund ({&f
DHEREMEREEMKEER
HEeEHRENBL)) (Finance and
Tax [2015] No. 135 Paper) issued by
the Ministry of Finance on 9 December
2015, which stipulates the refund policy
that the Group enjoys under the Civil
Aviation Development Fund remains
unchanged till 31 December 2020.
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PROSPECTS FOR THE SECOND HALF OF THE YEAR

In the first half of 2016, International Air Transport Association increased its
forecast for the half-year profit of the civil aviation industry and held the view
that the overall profit of civil aviation industry in 2016 would keep growth.

In the first half of 2016, the global economy had experienced a dramatic change
and continued to be more uncertain along with “Brexit” Vote, falling oil prices
and changeable exchange rates. However, in face of the unfavourable factors
including sluggish domestic economy and the pressure of domestic economic
downturn, various indexes of the domestic civil aviation and transportation
industry maintained uplifting momentum. Both the total transportation turnover
and passenger transportation turnover increased over 10%. In the first half of
2016, the international air transportation of China kept rapid growth. 60 new
international air routes were introduced by domestic airlines and the total
turnover of international air transportation recorded a year-on-year growth of
18.7%, twice as fast as the domestic air transportation turnover. The civil aviation
in Central and West China area developed rapidly. Most of the 151 new air routes
introduced by 24 airline companies were concentrated in Central and West
China. Along with the implementation of “One Belt and One Road” initiative, the
civil aviation of China will play an important role and its economic benefits will
increase significantly.

The Group considers that, in the second half of 2016, along with the execution
of the State’s “One Belt and One Road” initiative and the construction of
international tourist island in Hainan in full swing, and the sustained relief of the
offshore duty-free policies, there will be stable operation of both international
and domestic routes of Meilan Airport and healthy growth in major indexes
such as annual passenger throughput. In terms of operation management, the
Company will focus on meeting the requirements of “Sincere service” of CACC
while effectively promoting service management level; focus on “procedure
management” and “risk control”, and continue to implement emergency alert
mechanism and safety performance management. Meanwhile, it will rectify its
plan of becoming a SKYTRAX five star airport and try its best effort to achieve this
target. In addition to ensuring safety and service quality, the Group will conduct
cost control and generate new income sources so as to maintain annual profit

level and strive for fruitful return to shareholders.
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INTERIM DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to recommend payment of an interim dividend of
RMBO0.094 per share (tax inclusive) on or before Friday, 25 November 2016 to
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the Company's register
of members on Tuesday, 25 October 2016 at the extraordinary general meeting
11 October 2016 (“2016 Interim Dividends”), and has
authorised the Board to take any necessary actions in this regard as required by

to be held on Tuesday,

applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company's register of members will be closed from Sunday, 11 September
2016 to Tuesday, 11 October 2016 (both days inclusive), during which time no
transfer of shares will be registered. To attend and vote at the extraordinary
general meeting, all instruments of transfer, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and form of transfer shall be delivered to the Company's share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
located at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 September 2016.

The Company's register of members will be closed from Thursday, 20 October
2016 to Tuesday, 25 October 2016 (both days inclusive), during which time
no transfer of shares will be registered. To qualify for the entitlement of the
interim dividend, all instruments of transfer, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and form of transfer shall be delivered to the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
located at Room 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 19 October 2016
Subject to approval at the extraordinary general meeting, the interim dividend

will be paid on Friday, 25 November 2016.

MATERIAL LITIGATION OR ARBITRATION

The Group had not involved in any material litigation or arbitration from 1 January
2016 to 30 June 2016.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises eleven Directors. During the period from 1 January 2016 to
30 June 2016, changes in the directorship of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Liu Shanbin had taken over the role of executive director of Mr. Gao Jian from
18 May 2016, with a term of 3 years. His appointment was approved and ratified
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2016.

CHANGE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Based on the Company’s actual needs, Mr. Tu Haidong had taken over the role
of vice president of Mr. Gao Jian from 29 March 2016. His appointment was
subject to approval at the 19th meeting of the fifth session of the Board on 29
March 2016.

During the period from 30 June 2016 to the date of this interim report, changes
in the senior management of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Zhou Feng had taken over the role of chief financial officer of Mr. Zhang
Peihua from 25 August 2016. His appointment is subject to approval at the first
meeting of the sixth session of the Board on 25 August 2016.

REMUNERATION OF
SUPERVISORS

The Company held the 2012 annual general meeting on 27 May 2013, where

DIRECTORS AND

the “Resolution in Relation to the Remuneration Packages for the Directors and
Supervisors of the Company in 2013” was considered and approved. It provided
that Directors and supervisors of the Company nominated by shareholders of
related parties would not enjoy allowance for the position from the year of
2013, but will receive appropriate wages depending on their specific duties in
the Company. Other Directors and supervisors of the Company will receive their
remuneration according to the remuneration package approved by the general

meeting of shareholders.
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REMUNERATION OF COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Xing Zhoujin, being the company secretary nominated by shareholders of
related parties, will not enjoy any allowance for holding the position, but will
receive appropriate wages depending on his specific duties in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2016, the total number of issued shares of the Company was

EREBRAERAT
— A FREEE

—=

Other Information % 2 %

NREAMEME

MESEE (REWE) FRREB T BRIERDN
REWE  THEXEEOMEER - BRIEE
EARRREENABRGESHRNTERM -

A&

RIZE—RFRA=+TH  ARFADBHITZER

473,213,000, of which: AN 5473,213,0000% - Hep -
Percentage
Number of to total
Shares issued shares
EERT
B & R LB
Domestic shares NE B’ 246,300,000 52%
H shares HA% 226,913,000 48%
Total HE 473,213,000 100%

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, so far as known to the Directors, supervisors and chief
executives of the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken
to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the HK Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance ("SFO”"); or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at the general meetings of any other member of the
Group, or had any option in respect of such capital; or would be required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DOMESTIC SHARES

NE R

Percentage to

Percentage to

Name of Number of domestic shares total issued

shareholders Capacity Class of shares ordinary shares issued share capital

HERT HERT

BRER A 514 R 40 % B EERHBE RWERBIHL BRAEABDL

Haikou Meilan International Beneficial owner Corporate 237,500,000 (L) 96.43% 50.19%
Airport Company Limited (Note 1) E=HB %

BAXHERERS

BREEDTE (Bit1)
H SHARES HAR
Percentage to Percentage to
Names of Type of Number of H shares total issued
shareholders interests ordinary shares issued share capital
BT HE BT
L &SR EEREA HREZ L BRAEDL
Zhang Gaobo (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Gaobo (f7##2) SAEHIN AR
Zhang Zhiping (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Zhang Zhiping (fi7:#2) SREHIN AR
Oriental Patron Financial Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Services Group Limited (Note 2) SNy
Oriental Patron Financial Services
Group Limited (#7#£2)
Oriental Patron Financial Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Group Limited (Note 2) Rt VNS £
Oriental Patron Financial
Group Limited (#7#2)
Oriental Patron Resources Beneficial Interest 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%

Investment Limited (Note 2)
Oriental Patron Resources
Investment Limited (#7572)
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Percentage to Percentage to

Names of Type of Number of H shares total issued
shareholders interests ordinary shares issued share capital
EE BT HERT
RERERE R ER EEREE HRBE 2t BRABDL
UBS Group AG (Note 3) security interests in shares and 27,365,400 (L) 12.06% 5.78%
UBS Group AG (#77£3) interest of controlled corporations
HikhREREERR
RIEHI R AR
UBS AG (Note 4) Beneficial owner, security interests 27,174,400 (L) 11.98% 5.74%
UBS AG (#7524) in shares and interest of
controlled corporations
ERBEAA  HROHFARE
B RN R R 15,000 (S) 0.01% 0.00%
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (477#5) SRR AR
ARC Capital Partners Limited (Note 5) Investment manager 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
ARC Capital Partners Limited (#75%5) B
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Fund LP (Note 5) REH R AR
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity
Fund LP (#7:%5)
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (Note 5)  Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited (#7#5) 42612 Al
Pacific Alliance Group Asset Investment manager 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Management Limited (Note 5) BRI
Pacific Alliance Group Asset
Management Limited (477£5)
PAG Holdings Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%

PAG Holdings Limited (#73#5)

N
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Percentage to

Percentage to

Names of Type of Number of H shares total issued
shareholders interests ordinary shares issued share capital
EE BT HERT

BREH R EERBE  HRASL  BBRAESL
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Note 5) Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (#73%5) SRS A R
Pacific Alliance Investment Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%

Management Limited (Note 5) eI T
Pacific Alliance Investment

Management Limited (477£5)
Walden Ventures Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Walden Ventures Limited (472£5) EnEBA
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (Note 6) Beneficial owner and security interest 18,164,508 (L) 8.01% 3.84%
BESRTROBRAR (M) in shares

ERBEAANBRDFARERS

Greenwoods Asset Management Investment manager 11,686,000 (L) 6.10% 2.93%

Limited (Note 7) BB RIE
Greenwoods Asset Management

Limited (#z27)
JPMorgan Chase&Co. (Note 8) Beneficial owner and custodian 13,607,488 (L) 5.99% 2.88%
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (##38) corporation/approved lending

agent
ERBE ARGEEER
RAERHREA

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. (Note 9) Investment manager 11,387,747 (L) 5.02% 241%

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. (47579)

AR
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Notes:

Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited is a Company established in
the PRC and is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Zhang Gaobo and Zhang Zhiping held 49% and 51% interests in Oriental Patron
Financial Group Limited, respectively. Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited held
95% interests in Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited. 100% interests of
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited was wholly-owned by Oriental Patron
Financial Services Group Limited.

According to the disclosure of interest filed by UBS Group AG on the website
of the HK Stock Exchange, UBS Group AG was deemed to hold 8,896,000 shares
through its security interest and hold 18,469,400 shares through its interest in a
controlled corporation. UBS AG, UBS Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd, UBS
Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd, UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A. and
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG were wholly — owned by UBS Group AG.
UBS Group AG was deemed to hold interests in the Company through owning the
above-mentioned companies pursuant to Part XV of the SFO and were beneficially
holding 56,000 shares, 601,000 shares, 790,300 shares, 17,018,100 shares and 4,000
shares in the Company, respectively.

According to the disclosure of interest filed by UBS AG on the website of the HK Stock
Exchange, among the 27,174,400 shares in the Company, UBS AG was deemed to hold
8,896,000 shares through security interest, and 18,263,400 shares through interests of
a controlled corporation and 15,000 long position shares and 15,000 short position
shares as beneficial owner. UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) SA, UBS Global Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Ltd and UBS Global Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd
were wholly-owned by UBS AG. UBS AG was deemed hold interests in the Company
through owning the above-mentioned companies pursuant to Part XV of the SFO and
were beneficially holding 14,194,100 shares, 1,905,000 shares, and 2,164,300 shares
in the Company, respectively.

BRERRHERAT
B il

Other Information % 2 %

Hikt

BOXHBEREEEREEARETERAK
3 RARE 2 ERAR

Zhang Gaobo % Zhang Zhiping & B #5748 Oriental
Patron Financial Group Limited 49% & 51%%#
% © Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited$§ &
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited
95%# 2 ° Oriental Patron Financial Services Group
Limited % & 75 Oriental Patron Resources Investment
Limited 2 100%H) s ©

IR ARUBS Group AGRS & /8 Bk X PT A8 Uk 51) & 2 1
=W E 0 UBS Group AGII IR BB BREBERTF
B8896,000Mk D RN B BEIEFINAERIER
18,469,400f% %17 > UBS AG, UBS Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Ltd, UBS Asset Management (Singapore)
Ltd, UBS Fund Management (Luxembourg) S.A. 5 UBS
Fund Management (Switzerland) AG¥J FHUBS Group
AGEEBHER - BIBFE S REIE R P EXVER - UBS
Group AGHREBHA _Fll A RIMFE AR RN
BV - M%FARD R EEES AR F]560008%
A% 17 - 601,0008% A% 17 ~ 790,3008% A% 15 ~ 17,018,100
AR AR 17 B2 4, 0008 A% 1) ©

IRIEUBS AGR B BHE R FTABIL # 5 2 i 55 -
A F27,174,4000 B 2 H - UBS AGHE 1R /&35 i
IR 158,896,000 Bt 1 + BB ZIEH| A A
R FFE18263400 M ARIEABHEER A
£ 515,0000% 47 & B% 15 F215,0000% % B % 15  UBS
Fund Services (Luxembourg) SA + UBS Global Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Ltd & UBS Global Asset
Management (Singapore) Ltd¥J FHUBS AGZE & #
B REESFREERGIZEXVES © UBSAGHE R 5B
WA DM ARMBFEARARMDEELR - Mk
ERADNE @B RRFN4,194,10008 ;&5
1,905,0000% B19) 522,164,300/ A5
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36

PAG Holdings Limited held 99.17% interest in Pacific Alliance Group Limited, which
in turn held 90% interest in Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited. Pacific
Alliance Investment Management Limited held 52.53% interest in Pacific Alliance
Equity Partners Limited. Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited held 100% interest
in ARC Capital Partners Limited. ARC Capital Partners Limited was deemed to be
interested in 32,788,500 shares in its capacity as investment manager. ARC Capital
Holdings Limited is a corporation controlled by ARC Capital Partners Limited pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO. ARC Capital Holdings Limited was holding 46.67% interest
in Walden Ventures Limited which in turn held 14.45% interests in H shares of the
Company. Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited held 100% interest
in Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited. Pacific Alliance Group Asset
Management Limited was deemed to be interested in 32,788,500 shares in its capacity
as investment manager. Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. is a corporation
controlled by Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO. Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. held 36.67% interest in Walden
Ventures Limited which was in turn held 14.45% interests in H shares of the Company.

Among the 18,164,508 shares in the Company, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft was
deemed to hold 18,161,000 shares as person having securities interests in shares and
held 3,508 shares as beneficial owner.

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited was wholly owned by Greenwoods
Asset Management Holdings Limited, which in turn was held 81% by Jiang Jinzhi.
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited held 13,844,000 shares by virtue of its
capacity as investment manager.

Among the 13,607,488 shares in the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co. was deemed
to hold 12,963,588 shares as custodian corporation/approved lending agent and held
643,900 shares as beneficial owner.

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. held 11,387,747 shares in the Company by virtue
of its capacity as investment manager.

(L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively.

PAG Holdings Limited$% 75 Pacific Alliance Group Limited
299.17% %5 1% E+FH Pacific Alliance Investment
Management Limited 90%#x © Pacific Aliance Investment
Management Limited#% 7/ Pacific Alliance Equity Partners
Limited 52.53%#%s © Pacific Alliance Equity Partners
Limited$§ 5 ARC Capital Partners Limited 100%##
%5 ° ARC Capital Partners Limited ¥R & A EIZE
K3 17 FE 32,788,500l R 10 #E 7 o IRIRFE H
A 165 55 XVER » ARC Capital Holdings Limited &
—REARC Capital Partners LimitediZ #8922 7] °
ARC Capital Holdings Limited$§/&Walden Ventures
Limited 46.67%# % * MWalden Ventures Limited
A £ 8 & A AIHIR14.45% % ° Pacific Alliance
Investment Management Limited /1437 Pacific Alliance
Group Asset Management Limited 100%#£ % ° Pacific
Alliance Group Asset Management Limited#4% A
VA H % 8 #8318 5 15 #5 /532,788,5000% AR 19 4 25 -
IRIEEH MR E B S XVER - Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P.A — f& FaPacific Alliance Group
Asset Management LimitedZ |72 & © Pacific Alliance
Asia Opportunity Fund LP £ Walden Ventures Limited
36.67%E%s  MWalden Ventures Limited 8lJ#5 8 2K
AEIHA14.45% 2 o

RAA R 218,164,508 %0 &+ BEKIRITIK
MERATHEAHROFARBEREZ Z ALTMHE
RIEFEE18,161,00008 %10 - RIERERMESE A
43,5080 1D ©

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited F§ Greenwoods
Asset Management Holdings Limited 2 &¥#4H @ M
Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings Limited Bl
Jiang Jinzhit$581% ° Greenwoods Asset Management
Limited AR & X T2 ) 5 {0155 13,844,000 A 10

RANAR]13,607,488% A% {5 & + JPMorgan Chase
& Co RYERFEE LR/ ZAEE L RIE AT HARIE
FH12,963,5880 k1) - REAIERE=ER AE
643,900 J&1H -

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. Rl & {E A% & 418
B & D MEFEANRR1,387,7478K81D ©

LROBBIRKITARAR -



Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, so far as known to the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company, no other person (not being the
Directors, supervisors, and chief executives of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the HK Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or, who
were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other member of the Group, or had any option in respect of
such capital; or would be required to be recorded in the register to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2016, no Directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which would be required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or required to be notified
to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

THE RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES TO PURCHASE SHARES

None of the Director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company or their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any rights to
subscribe for Shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold, redeemed or
cancelled any of the listed securities of the Company during the six months
ended 30 June 2016.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has, together with the management, reviewed the interim
report, including the accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group,
and discussed matters relating to auditing, internal control, financial reporting
and non-exempt continuing connected transactions, including review of the
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial information for the six
months ended 30 June 2016.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 3.10(1),
RULE 3.10(2) AND RULE 3.21 OF LISTING RULES

As of 30 June 2016, there were four independent non-executive Directors in the
Board. As of 30 June 2016, the audit committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, including one personnel with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting and the membership of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transaction by the Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standards of the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries with the
Directors of the Company, all of the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transaction during the six months ended 30 June 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to complying with all the rules prescribed by
the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the HK Stock Exchange and
regulations of other competent authorities. For the six months ended 30 June
2016, the Company had complied with the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and met
with all reasonable governance and disclosure requirements. The Company will
continue to improve its corporate governance and enhance its transparency to
shareholders.
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THE BOARD
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EEg

As at the date of this interim report, the Board comprised the following persons: RARERERA - "ARFESSHUTALAE

Executive Directors
WANG Zhen (Chairman)
YANG Xiaobin (President)
ZHANG Peihua

LIU Shanbin

HITEF
TE(EFR)

15/ NE (#E3)

SR fm 5

2=

Non-executive Directors

HU Wentai (Vice Chairman)
CHAN Nap Kee, Joseph
YAN Xiang

HFHITEE

X% (FIEER)
BRAE

D

By order of the Board

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited
Wang Zhen

Chairman and Executive Director

Haikou, the PRC
9 September 2016

R

Independent Non-executive Directors
DENG Tianlin

FUNG Ching, Simon

George F MENG

HE Linji

BUHBITEF

R

ISAE
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B
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As at 30 June 2016 201656 H30H

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (R4 BIZTEASN - ©XBEE (LA AREIT)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 20156 2016F 20155
6H308 12A31H 6A30H 12A318
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
aff &0 AT NG
ASSETS Note(s) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
BE Mzt (REBET) (fg=5tr) (REBET) (&)
Current assets RBEE

Cash at bank and on hand ERES 489(1) 1,238,661,446 1023267032 1,226,043,659 1018071646
Accounts receivable FEUER R 42)7902) 218,130,384 303,184,304 215,765,147 300,803,069
Advances to suppliers B HIE 1,998,483 1,936,434 1,697,527 1,349,798
Interests receivable FEWFI & 74+ 1,319,500 1,122,387 1,319,500 1,122,387
Other receivables H iR 403)49(3) 8,053,162 23,965,933 9,086,654 25,059,831
Inventories BE 225,182 174,758 225,182 174,758
Other current assets HiReEaE 44)79(4) 7,423,298 388,331,072 7,421,503 388,329,277
Total current assets RBEEST 1,475,811,455 1741981920 1,461,559,172  1,734910,766

Non-current assets FRBEE

4(5),13(1)

Long-term equity investments RERERE 79(5) - +=(1) 1,583,756,686 1210687572 1,593,956,686  1220,887,572
Fixed assets il V= 4(6)79(6) 1,692,031,991 1598841660 1,685,486,674 1593344409
Construction in progress EETR 47)08(7) 1,056,102,471 568,551,255  1,056,102,471 568,551,255
Intangible assets EBWAE 4(8)77(8) 175,724,022 177,709903 175,724,022 177,709,903
Deferred tax assets EEFEHERE 4(9)49(9) 7,418,530 7,816,592 7,418,530 7,816,592
Other non-current assets EMIEREEE 40079(10)  1,780,343,691 1656654004 1,780,343,691  1,656,654,004
Total non-current assets FRBEES 6,295,377,391 5220260986 6,299,032,074  5224,963735
Total assets EES 7,771,188,846  6,962,242,906 7,760,591,246  6,959,874,501
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Consoliidated and Covpany Bodonce Sheet (Continved) & %4 2 2 9 £ 4 £ & & (¢3)

As at 30 June 2016 201646 H30H

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 RIZEBRSN + ©EBEEAI A ARKIT)
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20154 20164 20155
6A30H 12A318 6A308 12A318
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
aft A AT N
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Note(s) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
SERER ki3 (REHE) (z25t) (REHE) (#&qt)
Current liabilities TBaE
Short-term borrowings EHER 411)89(11) 162,520,102 - 162,520,102 =
Accounts payable TR 4(1279(12) 24,985,984 19,064,006 23,224,842 18,071,821
Advances from customers FE U IA 4(13)09(13) 11,623,904 10,840,253 11,562,003 10,510,053
Employee benefits payable FET I T3 4(14)79(14) 21,567,069 27,881,900 17,833,033 21,807,298
Taxes payable ERHE 4(15)79(15) 33,719,632 45,807,492 30,277,016 44,234,584
Interests payable FEFTFIE 4(16)09(16) 26,318,683 49,952,295 26,318,683 49,952,295
Dividends payable FE AR A 4(17)09(17) 54,561,783 499,500 54,561,783 499,500
Other payables H e 4(18)79(18) 373,779,082 283759288 419,870,812 322,184,417
Non-current liabilities due within one year ~ —FRNZIHEERBEE 419409  1,034,441,580 1461412354 1,034,441,580 1461412354
Total current liabilities REBEEE: 1,743,517,819  1.899217,088 1,780,609,854 1928672322
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Long-term borrowings REER 4(20)09(20) 866,907,963 932,955,163 866,907,963 932,955,163
Corporate bonds NAlfEFH 401)/921)  1,290,754,036 794952116 1,290,754,036 794,952,116
Long-term payables REEMT 4(22)79(22) 46,219,855 62,177,707 46,219,855 62,177,707
Long-term employee benefits payable REEABE TEHHN 848,082 1,244,453 848,082 1,244,453
Other non-current liabilities Hidensha i 18,502,003 20,305,734 18,502,003 20,305,734
Total non-current liabilities EkRBRES 2,223,231,939 1811635173 2,223,231,939  1811,635,173
Total liabilities EELH 3,966,749,758 3710852261 4,003,841,793  3,740,307,495
Shareholders’ equity RRER
Share capital A 473,213,000 473213000 473,213,000 473,213,000
Capital surplus BADNE 423)09(23)  1,032,271,276 683,509,755 1,032,271,276 683,509,755
Surplus reserve BHAE 246,394,231 246394231 246,394,231 246,394,231
Undistributed profits AOBFE 404/924)  2,023,345,174 1826832534 2,004,870,946 1816450020
Total capital and reserves attributable to FEREATRE
shareholders of the Company BEAE 3,775,223,681 3,229,949,520  3,756,749,453 3,219,567,006
Minority interest DR FE R 29,215,407 21,441,125 - -
Total equity BHRA 3,804,439,088  3251390,645 3,756,749,453  3,219,567,006
Total liabilities and equity BERERA 7,771,188,846  6,962,242,906 7,760,591,246  6,959,874,501

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PEEREEA -
Wang Zhen

E

Person in charge of accounting function:

FTEERFTIFMNREA -
Zhou Feng
5=

&I TR R M A TS R AR BB 17

Person in charge of accounting department:

B EERAAN ¢

Wang Haoliang
T
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HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Interim Report 2016

Consoladated ond Company Tncome Statements 8 1% & 1 9 #43 %

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 & 201646 30 B 1F61# A HAR
(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 RIFEERS) - £XEEL B ARETT)

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H LL6fE A
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016%F 20154 2016 20155
Consolidated  Consolidated Company Company
aff i AT NG
Item Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
5H Mzt (REBHET) (RIEEE) (REBET) (K&
429),13(2)
Revenue EERA Ji25) - +=(2) 627,310,083 571,693,772 572,681,388 489,777,733
429),13(2)
Less: Operating costs B BERR J9(25) » +=(2) (230,749,265)  (215574343) (196,692,462) (148685972
Taxes and surcharges EER S KM (8,596,318) (10,835,223) (8,312,061) (10,505,474)
4(25),13(2)
General and administrative expenses EEER /ps) - +=02)  (31,218,565) (26,581,577)  (28,910,723) (24,707,357)
Financial expenses - net WBER - F8 4(26) 79(26) (44,790,586) (11363,651)  (44,653,270) (11,143,296)
Provision for asset impairment losses BERBERX - (682,149) - (682,149)
Add: Investment income s FEE 4027) 9(27) 24,307,593 10,799,264 24,307,593 10,799,264
Hep: BEE AR
Including: Share of profit of associates BBz 24,307,593 10,799,264 24,307,593 10,799,264
Operating profit EERE 336,262,942 317456093 318,420,465 304,852,749
Add: Non-operating income m: EEMEA 5,836,700 882,177 2,775,104 869,930
Including: Gains on disposal of Hb ERPEERE
non-current assets MNE 426,381 - 426,381 =
Less: Non-operating expenses o2 S (2,048,674) (6,072,135) (2,048,674) (6,065,154)
Including: Losses on disposal of Hp: ERBEERE
non-current assets 1Bk (1,981,307) (5,653,066) (1,981,307) (5,653,066)
Total profit Fma 340,050,968 312,266,135 319,146,895 299,657,525
Less: Income tax expenses B PTEHER 4(28) 74(28) (78,978,486) (75641,170)  (73,940,409) (72,396,999)
Net profit A 261,072,482 236,624,965 245,206,486 227,260,526
Attributable to shareholders of el NG
the Company Elbe 253,298,200 232,036,002 245,206,486 227,260,526
Minority interest PERRER 7,774,282 4,588,963 - =
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Consolidated and Company Income Statements (Continued) £ 4 & & & 4 & (¢%)

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 30 A 1F6f6E A HARI

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (R4 RIZERRSN + &

Six months ended 30 June

BEBEUR/ARKET)

B Z6A30H L6 A
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 2015%F 20165 0154
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
At At AF NS
Item Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
5H Wzt (REET) (REE&ET) (REE&E) (CREE&:T)
Earnings per share BRKE
Basic earnings per share BERGRME 4(29) 79(29) 0.54 049 N/ATER N/ATRER
Diluted earnings per share wESRKE 4(29) 79(29) 0.54 049 N/ATER N/AREF
HivaR & Wz MBRAT B S
Other comprehensive income after tax FERNFE - - - -
Total comprehensive income GEkEEE 261,072,482 236,624,965 245,206,486 227,260,526
Attributable to shareholders FBRARARRL
of the Company m%{/\i‘ 253,298,200 232,036,002 245,206,486 227,260,526
BROEIRER
Minority interest A lEEE 7,774,282 4,588,963 - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function:
PREEA FTEEIIIEMNERA :

Wang Zhen Zhou Feng

£ A

BRI TSR R M A TS R AR ER D

Person in charge of accounting department:

EiHBERRA
Wang Haoliang

g
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HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Interim Report 2016

Consolidoted and Company Cash Flow Statements 4 4 & R 9 42 %% %

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 & 201646 30 B 1F61# A HAR
(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 RIFEERS) - £XEEL B ARETT)

Six months ended 30 June

EZ6A30HL6fEA
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20155 20165 20154
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
At At AF AR
Item Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HH Mzt (REET) (REEZE) (RE&E:) (RIEEET)
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELNHLRE
Cash received from sales of goods or HENm - RESH
rendering of services WHIHNH S 736,164,783 518,443,168 677,190,773 431,530,664
Cash received relating to other W3 H BT & E B
operating activities B@ANERE 96,862,543 103,383,605 93,850,022 103,223,521
Sub-total of cash inflows BETHREMANG 833,027,326 621826773 771,040,795 534,754,185
BERM  EXBHEIN
Cash paid for goods and services Be (117,438,372) (146,276,428)  (101,283,664) (89,106,251)
TRHGEBTIURA
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees BIYMANES (104,278,605) (67325869)  (74,931,882) (47,864,720)
Payments of taxes and surcharges YRS ERE (106,934,943)  (110,208494)  (100,833,694)  (105,036,726)
Cash paid relating to other X E MRS
operating activities BRnmERE (111,076,868) (82,468,000)  (110,472,136) (81,071,545)
Sub-total of cash outflows REFHREME N5t (439,728,788)  (406278791) (387,521,376) (323,079,242
Net cash flows from BETEHEEN
operating activities HeRneFeE 393,298,538 215547982 383,519,419 211,674,943
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELANESRE
Cash received from investment RERERENES 380,000,000 - 380,000,000 -
Cash receipt of investment income HEREWEMEENES 12,497,778 = 12,497,778 =
Net cash received from disposal of REETEAERDM
fixed assets Be5%E 1,738,668 38,857 1,736,903 38,857
Sub-total of cash inflows RETHRERANG 394,236,446 38857 394,234,681 38,857
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets BRETEEMN
and other long term assets HEREBEELNNES (579,206,487) (109481299 (576,847,617)  (108,757,733)
Cash paid for investment RESNHEE (160,000,000) - (160,000,000) -
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHRESRL Gt (739,206,487)  (109481,299) (736,847,617)  (108,757,733)
Net cash flows from RETHELN
investing activities HeReFE (344,970,041)  (109,442,442)  (342,612,936)  (108,718,876)
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Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements (Continued) £ 44 & 2 9 % 4 %€ & (8%)

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 30 A 1F6f6E A HARI

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B&4FBIZERRS) @ &

Six months ended 30 June

BEBEUR/ARKET)

EZ6A30HL6fEA
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20155 20165 20155
Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
aff At AH NG|
Item Note(s) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HE it (RE&ET) (REEZE) (RE&E:) (RIEEET)
Cash flows from financing activities EETHELNELRE
Cash received from issuing bonds ?éfm HHEINEE 495,000,000 - 495,000,000 -
Cash received from borrowings NEERREIRRE 162,520,102 - 162,520,102 =
Sub-total of cash inflows BEEHREMANG 657,520,102 - 657,520,102 -
Cash repayments of borrowings BEEBINNES (533,487,430) (209,946,000  (533,487,430)  (209,946,000)
Cash payments for distribution of AEBRA - KB
dividends or profits and interest expenses B F B KRS (91,021,537)  (129951,860)  (91,021,924)  (129,951,860)
Cash payments relating to other YREMEEEES
financing activities BENES (37,896,254) (21,866,935) (37,896,254) (21,866,935)
Sub-total of cash outflows BERDRERL 5t (662,405,221)  (361,764,795)  (662,405,608)  (361,764,795)
BETHELW
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ B&H 858 (4,885,119)  (361764795)  (4,885,506)  (361,764,795)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSBHHEERK
changes on cash and cash equivalents BRE&ZENHNTE (48,964) 3418812 (48,964) 3,418,923
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRBEEZEY
cash equivalents B CAYD) 8 43,394,414 (252,240,443) 35,972,013 (255,389,805)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at s BmRe R
beginning of period ReSENHE 1,023,267,032 1884557387 1,018,071,646  1,880,585,089
Cash and cash equivalents at
end of period BARERAEEBYHE 1,066,661,446 1632316944 1,054,043,659  1625,195284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function:
PEEEA FEERHTEMNEEA -

Wang Zhen Zhou Feng

=1 A

18 P B 75 SR B S AR B A5 SRR VAR BB D

Person in charge of accounting department:

PITHEREA
Wang Haoliang

Ep

N

/A JC
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HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

Interim Report 2016

Consolidated Statement, of Chamses in Sharcholders' Bquity & % 1 3. 45 % B 4

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 & 201646 30 B 1F61# A HAR

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BlIZERRASN -

SREMR/ARKET)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
BERAAANRRER

Total
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed Minority ~ shareholders’
Item Note(s) capital reserves reserves profits interest equity
%A Mgt e EX0E BRAR  APEME SBRFER RRERSH
4(23)09(23) 424)724)
Balance at 1 January 2015 20155171 B IHE 473213000 668585780 246394231  14879093%6 15251802 2891354169
Movements for the period ended 2201556 A30H LL6/8 A
30 June 2015 HERAEBE
Total comprehensive income FmalRes
Net profit beilb] - - - 232,036,002 4,588,963 236,624,965
QOther comprehensive income Hﬁ’g,mg Wz - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income GElmRBas - - - 232,036,002 4588963 236624965
Profit distribution MEHE
Profit distributed to shareholders  HREHHE 404 7(24) = = - (43,062,400) - (43,062,400)
Balance at 30 June 2015 201556 A30 B I REAE 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231 1,676,882,958 19,840,765  3,084916,734
Balance at 1 January 2016 201651718 H4%HE 473,213,000 683,509,755 246,394,231 1,826,832,534 21,441,125 3,251,390,645
Movements for the period ended  EZ2016%6 5308 LL6{E A
30 June 2016 HELR2E
Total comprehensive income malmes
Net profit FHE - - - 253,298,200 7,774,282 261,072,482
Qther comprehensive income Ethiza s - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FANGBEA - - - 253,298,200 7,774,282 261,072,482
Profit distribution MEHE
Profit distributed to shareholders  HREADE 404 F7(24) - - - (56,785,560) - (56,785,560)
Other movement of capital surplus B A DTEE S 403)5123) - 348,761,521 - - - 348,761,521
Balance at 30 June 2016 201656 A30 B I REAE 473,213,000 1,032,271,276 246,394,231 2,023,345,174 29,215,407 3,804,439,088

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PREEA
Wang Zhen

£
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Person in charge of accounting function:

A—A—A

FERLIFMREA -

Zhou Feng
A

1R P B 75 SR B FE AR B A SRR VAR RR (D ©

Person in charge of accounting department:
BiHBERRA -
Wang Haoliang

EHER
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Covpany Statement; of Chanses in Sharoholders' Bquity i 9 1% %75 % B ¥ %

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 & = 201646 A 30 B 1-61# A HAR
(Allamounts in Renminbi (“RMB") Yuan unless otherwise stated) (R4 RIZEBRSN + ©EBEE A1 A ARKIT)

Total
Share Capital Surplus Undistributed shareholders’
Item Note(s) capital reserves reserves profits equity
R i3 R& BARNR BHAE  KOBAR RREZEH
423)09(23) 424)79(24)
Balance at 1 January 2015 201551 A1 BB E 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231 1,483,789,082  2,871,982,093
Movements for the period ended ~ EZ2015%6430H 1L618 A
30 June 2015 HEER2HE
Total comprehensive income Gelmes
Net profit ezl - - - 227260526 227,260,526
Other comprehensive income Bt s = = = = =
Total comprehensive income FAMREBA - - - 22726052 227,260,526
Profit distribution MBS
Profit distributed to shareholders HRERNDE 4(24)4(24) - - - (430624000 (43,062400)
Balance at 30 June 2015 201556 H30H HiRGHE 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394231  1,667987,208  3,056,180,219
Balance at 1 January 2016 201651 A1 BB E 473,213,000 683,509,755 246,394,231 1,816,450,020 3,219,567,006
Movements for the period ended ~ EZ20165F6 301 LL6{EA
30 June 2016 HEER2sE
Total comprehensive income FAWRER
Net profit beoalbE - - - 245,206,486 245,206,486
Other comprehensive income Hibir e - - - - -
Total comprehensive income AR EEAH - - - 245,206,486 245,206,486
Profit distribution MESE
Profit distributed to shareholders HRRNHE 4(24) 14(24) - - - (56,785,560)  (56,785,560)
Other movement of capital surplus Hih BAAERE 4(23) 14(23) - 348,761,521 - - 348,761,521
Balance at 30 June 2016 2016F6 A30 A i REREE 473,213,000 1,032,271,276 246,394,231 2,004,870,946 3,756,749,453

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PEEEA -
Wang Zhen

£

Person in charge of accounting function:

FTEERFTTIEMNREA -

Zhou Feng
5=

BiTHEREA -
Wang Haoliang

IR
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Person in charge of accounting department:
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Notes to the Financial Stotementsdd 3% 3 % %9 2

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 & 201646 30 B 1F61# A HAR

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BlIZERRASN -

2.1

48

General information

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited (formerly known as “Hainan Meilan
International Airport Company Limited”) (the “Company”) was established
as a joint stock company with limited liability in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") on 28 December 2000. The legal address and headquarters
of the Company is at Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC. The Company’s
H-shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 18 November 2002. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) are mainly engaged in the operation of the Meilan Airport
in Hainan Province, the PRC (the “Meilan Airport”) and certain ancillary
commercial businesses. The parent company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Haikou Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. (“Haikou
Meilan”), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC with limited
liability.

On 5 January 2015, as approved by the extraordinary general meeting
of shareholders, the Company changed its name to HNA Infrastructure
Company Limited.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 August 2016.

These interim financial statements have not been audited.

Summary of significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates

Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Basic
Standard of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, specific
accounting standards and other relevant regulations (hereafter collectively
referred to as the "Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises” or “CAS")
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’'s Republic of China on
or after 15 February 2006. The financial statements were prepared and
disclosed in accordance with CAS 32 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, and the financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015. The accounting policies applied are consistent with
those of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

SREMR/ARKET)

— RAEAETER

EMERRDERAR (AIfEA EEEH
B EROHER AR LTEHEIAA
A1) B—FKHK2000F12828BFEFEAR
HAE (ATEE [RE]) K28R AR
NA] o NN B FEM i K B EB b A R BUERE
£80M - AREIRER2002%11 188 &
BEBBMERSIERBELETRZS c NAHF
MFRA] (ATEBAEE]) HEEER
AR EEEAEOTMERKE (U TE
BIEWEKS]) ARETHEmEREY -
RABIEER B RERARTE S R ER B KL
WEAEEEOEMBEEESEREEAA
(LATRSHE 8O ]) -

R2015F1A5H @ BREREFRIASHAE - K
NAIEZEEBMERRNDERAF °

AP EHRERAERDTEELR20165F8H25
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Notes to the Financiol Statementsdd 3 13 £ % #

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 30 A 1F6f6E A HARI

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B&4FBIZERRS) @ &

Summary of significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

As at 30 June 2016, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
RMB267,706,364 (31 December 2015: RMB157,235,168) as a result of the
reclassification of long-term bank borrowings of US$139,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB921,736,800) as current liabilities in the current period considering
that the borrowings will mature in December 2016 (Note 4(20)). The
Group has planned refinancing arrangements for the repayment of these
borrowings, including but not limited to issuance of corporate bonds.
During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group successfully issued
three-year bonds of RMB500 million and has a plan to issue corporate
bonds of RMB2.5 billion with maturity of not more than 5 years by private
placement according to the remaining approved quota in the following 12
months. Based on the cash flow forecast for coming 12 months prepared
by management and taking into account the future cash inflows from
operations and successful issuance of corporate bonds totalling RMB2.5
billion, management is of the view that the Group would have sufficient
funds to settle the outstanding debt when it falls due. As a result, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period ended 30
June 2016 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting estimates and
key judgments applied based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.
In preparing these consolidated interim financial statements, the significant
judgements made by management in applying the Group’s accounting
policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as
those that applied to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

2) EEZ

BEBEUR/ARKET)

— EERESBERMEIHEE @

(1) BMBHEXLmRER (&)

M2016F6H308 - AEEFRBEEAA
R #267,706,3647T (20155F 128318 : AR
#157,2351687L) + AEAL I FREB B EN
FTERARASE R AI39EET (37
A AR #921,736,80070) B & B fE 30 HE R
20165812 A BIEREE (FIsErU(20) #EMmiER
MENEEYER - AEB G E ZHEBRE ST
£l BEETERREITAAMES - BE2016
F6A308 + AEEBKINETARKESET
HRIFM A RIES - Wit BN ARR+ =&
RAARITEBAEFISBREE AAREET
HRTHBSFHIEAFATES - REBEE
BERUMNASBEARRT-_EARESRKE
B EATBEIMEEEHIR SR A NI
TAREGETESEENES  BEER
AAREEERENEENIBER -
It REBEH E2016F6 A30H LE B A BT
BMERAFELCE RERFER -

Tt 18 5T A H B
AEBRBELEBMEMER  BEYHR
REENGEREY - UARANEZ GG

SRR A EETRENE - EEERR
B HIB SRR AR 2 SRR AT
ER 2 ERHEA R T EEMTZEZERR
BREA2015F12A31 B IEFE 2 FEIM#E
WwEREMR o
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Notes to the Financial Statementcdd 3 3 % W #

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 A 30 A 1F6f6 A HARI
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (R BIZEBRSN - £ 2B A AREIT)

IR

3 Taxation

(1) The main categories and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are set () AEEBEAMNEZZEFHERER XK
out below: I
Category Tax base Tax rate
HE Bk IE BxR
Corporate income tax (“CIT") Taxable income 25%
BEMRED FE AT P 1S 5E 25%
Value Added Tax (“VAT") (Note) Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is calculated using 6% or 11% or 17%

the taxable sales amount multiplied by the applicable tax rate
less deductible input VAT of current period)

ER (Hfat) FEMTRIB(ERE (PR ERIR BN T SH &SRR B B R R 6%3%11%5%17%
A FFENERRRNOSRETE

Business tax (Note) Taxable turnover amount 5%
BEM (M) FEANT & 5 5%
Civil maintenance and VAT and business tax paid 5% or 7%
construction fee
T MR AR T BN IS AR TN SRR R 5%3%,7%
Education Fee VAT and business tax paid 3%
HE BN BN IS AR TN & TR R 3%
Local Education Fee VAT and business tax paid 2%
75 20 A B0 AN YIS (B R N SE TR R 2%
Note: Pursuant to “Notice on Expanding the Pilot Program of Replacing Business BraE - IREBEMES - ERBEHLERBER
Tax with Value-Added Tax to All Industries” jointly issued by the Ministry PEMERESETSCEET A @
of Finance of the PRC and the State Administration of Taxation (Caishui ) (Bf Fi[2016] 365%) © BH2016%F5
[2016] No.36), starting from 1 May 2016, except for the aeronautical A1B#  KEEKMEIEINELIR
revenue charged to offshore units and the refund from Civil Aviation HMERFRAMEMERES IR
Development Fund which are both free of VAT, other revenues of the BRHAREIEERI - A EEK
Group are subject to VAT at the applicable tax rates of 6%, 11% or 17%. AN A ER - B ER6% - 11%3K
17% °
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U S/ EERRER M

(1) E¥&2

30June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 A30H 2015F12 4318

Cash on hand 13,434 35,641
Cash at bank (a) 1,238,648,012 1,023,231,391
1,238,661,446 1,023,267,032

Less: restricted cash (b) W ZEHEIE S Ob) (172,000,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents He hIReFEY 1,066,661,446 1,023,267,032
(@  Asat30June 2016, the Group's deposits placed with HNA Group Finance Co., @@ PA20165F6H308 7R B EE 5 /&M & =

Ltd. ("HNA Group Finance”, a related party) amounted to RMB291,863,254 (31

December 2015: RMB350,671,059).

(b) As at 30 June 2016, a fixed deposit of RMB160,000,000 was pledged as (b)
collateral (31 December 2015: Nil) for the Group's short-term borrowings of

US$24,508,400 (equivalent to RMB162,520,102) (Note 4(11)).

As at 30 June 2016, deposit of RMB12,000,000 was pledged as collateral for the

asset-backed security borrowings (Note 4(20)(b)).

AR AR (DEMMB]) WIRITERE
A R #291,863,2547T (2015512 A31H A
R#350,671,0597T) °

201656 A30H + A R #160,000,0007T #) =&
BTF sk (20159128318 &) BEIRLGIRITIE
73 724,508,4007T (1 & A R #162,520,102
JT) FEERE AR (MIEEmma 1)) °

R20165F6H308 - AR %12,000,0007T & iR

TERERAERSLERORES (Wi
79(20)(b)) °

51



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Interim Report 2016

Notes to the Financial Statementcdd 3 3 % W #

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 A 30 A 1F6f6 A HARI

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (F&45 Bl ZEBASN -

4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable

SRBMN/ARETT)

(2) W

30 June 2016

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

31 December 2015

20166 A30H 2015512 H31H
Accounts receivable by nature U BR IR E &l 5
— from aeronautical services R E R ZE B A 127,590,695 123,335,441
— from non-aeronautical services KB R IEMZE YA 92,367,919 181,677,093
219,958,614 305,012,534
Less: provision for bad debts o SREREE (1,828,230) (1,828,230)
218,130,384 303,184,304

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

20166 A30H 2015%F12H31H
Accounts receivable by customers FEWERF IR R P&l 5
— from third parties FEUWEE = BRI 175,935,848 248,580,881
Less: provision for bad debts o EERERE (1,828,230) (1,828,230)
174,107,618 246,752,651
— from related parties (Note 7(4)(b)) e BaES 5 BR AR (MY it (4) (b)) 44,022,766 56,431,653
218,130,384 303,184,304

Credit terms granted to customers of the Group are determined on an

individual basis with a general range from 1 to 3 months.
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(Continued)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

EBRERKROGERAR

- REhHHRE

Notes to the Financiol Statementsdd 3 13 £ % #

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 30 A 1F6f6E A HARI

(2) BWAES (&)

TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(@) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable, based on the date of (@) MEUERFIZE AR B BA KRR 20
recognition, is set out as follows: ™~

30June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 H30H 2015512 H31H

Within 90 days 90KRIARA 158,447,559 178,533,954
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 42,753,315 38,807,796
181 to 365 days 181 RE 365K 13,463,733 82,037,452
Over 365 days 365 KA E 5,294,007 5,633,332
219,958,614 305,012,534

Other receivables

The ageing of other receivables is analysed below:

(3) EEWRs

H it U BREE DT

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

20166 H30H 2015512 A31H

Within 90 days 90K LA 635,883 6,720,287
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 2,344,488 12,782,094
181 to 365 days 181 K &E365K 914,998 975,211
Over 365 days 365K A F 4,157,793 3,488,341
8,053,162 23,965,933

As at 30 June 2016, balances of other receivables of the Group aged over
365 days were primarily due from a number of related parties from which
management believes that there was no collectability problem. Accordingly,

no provision was made against these receivables.

BRI AR o

R2016F6A308 » ZANE B H b B W R BR iR
FBIB3CS A ARIBEE A A RS &
BERATFEQWERZE - EtEKTOR
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(4)

(5)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)
Other current assets

SRBMN/ARETT)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(4) Rt hBEE

30June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 H30H 20156124311

Entrusted loan due within one year (@) —FEARR RN EEEK(a) - 380,000,000
Deductible VAT IR ER 7,421,503 8,329,277
Prepayments of other taxes and levies ~ FE&IE i & 1,795 1,795
7,423,298 388,331,072

In 2014, the Group granted a two-year entrusted loan of RMB380,000,000 to
Hainan Haidao Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (“Haidao Commercial”, a
related party) through HNA Group Finance at a fixed interest rate of 8% per
annum. The entrusted loan was early settled in May 2016.

Long-term equity investments

Associates — Unlisted companies

R B R20145 7 B8 i B 75 R BE B 5 08
MEESEEEEARAA(EEEHED
REASH_FHNEAER ¢BAARYK
380,000,0007T * & & & F| E B8% * % 5K H
BE1R201655 A HRATHE ©

(a

(5) RAKERE
HEPE—F LHARA
Movement in current period
RE R E
Share of net
profit and loss

of investees Other
31 December under equity  movement of 30 June
2015 method equity 2016
201546 BERE Hity 20165%
12318 #ARHFER BE2H 6A30H
(Note 4(23))
(H1itr(23))
Haikou Decheng Industrial and
Development Co, Ltd. BOEREXEEBRAR
("Haikou Decheng”) (hgoeEH]) 31,985,588 (29,621) = 31,955,967
Hainan Airlines Airport Holding Group
Company Limited BEEER (RE) BRAR
("HNA Airport Holdings") (Note) ([/Bfmissn bk ) (#12E) 1,178,701,984 24,337,214 348,761,521 1,551,800,719
1,210,687,572 24,307,593 348,761,521  1,583,756,686

There is no significant restriction on the transfer of fund between the Group
and its long term equity investments.

Note:The place of incorporation and business of HNA Airport Holdings and its
subsidiaries (the “HNA Airport Group”) are in the PRC, and there is no business
transaction between the Group and HNA Airport Group.

AEBERECR AT FEEBESTH
B E KRR o

Hiat - BHRESEREEFRR (EHMESER
SE ) waEftkEE2R LM EPEE
A - EAREEEER FER -



4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)
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SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(6) Fixed assets (6) BEIELE
Buildings Machinery Office
and and Motor  equipment
structures  equipment vehicles  and others Total
EER WOZER
EEY BaERE E®HIA Hite a3t
Cost [R{E
31 December 2015 2015812 A31H 1,748,228,049 117,664,637 104,624,150 90,917,945  2,061,434,781
Increase in current period ZRHIE N
Purchase BE - 1,011,401 35,489,795 26,358,814 62,860,010
Transfer from CIP (Note 4(7)) FERETRREA (7M7) 51609613 7,190,132 = 19,664,541 78,464,286
Decrease in current period NEBR D
Disposal and other decrease BB REAMR D (269,819) (3,791,283) (2/413,562) (1,283,355) (7.758,019)
30 June 2016 201646 8308 1,799,567,843  122,074887 137700383  135657,945 2,195001,058
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
31 December 2015 20155128318 (350,303,670) (28,209,518) (36,496,252) (47,583,681)  (462,593,121)
Increase in current period ZRHASE
Depreciation charged in
current period HE (22,333,986) (6,841,478) (6,409,304) (9,255,603) (44,840,371)
Decrease in current period REF D
Disposal and other decrease RENEHAMED = 1,014,727 2,291,721 1,157,977 4,464,425
30 June 2016 2016%64308 (372637,656)  (34036269)  (40613:835)  (55681307)  (502,969,067)
Carrying amount REEE
30 June 2016 201656 A30H 1,426,930,187 88,038,618 97,086,548 79,976,638 1,692,031,991
31 December 2015 2015128318 1397,924379 89455119 68,127,898 43334264 1,598,841,660
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(Continued)

(6) Fixed assets (Continued)

56

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of RMB44,533,260 and RMB307,111 have been charged
to operating costs and general and administrative expenses for the
period (for the six months ended 30 June 2015: RMB29,689,916 and
RMB232,434), respectively.

The Group and Haikou Meilan entered into an investment agreement
related to international terminal building, west gallery expansion
and other auxiliary projects on 26 August 2011 (Note 7(5)(a)). The
international terminal building and its auxiliary projects, which were
completed and put into use in 2013, were recognized as fixed assets
at an original cost of RMB236,748,630 (including the original cost of
international terminal building of RMB186,133,521 and the original
cost of other auxiliary projects of RMB50,615,109) in 2013. As at 30
June 2016, the carrying amount of these assets is RMB220,664,080 (31
December 2015: carrying amount of RMB223,352,604). The ownership
of international terminal building are jointly held by the Company and
Haikou Meilan. The west gallery expansion project were completed
and put into use in October 2015 and were recognized as fixed assets
of RMB601,120,441, as at 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of these
assets is RMB589,686,528 (31 December 2015: carrying amount of
RMB598,431,745), the application of ownership certification is still in
progress.

As at 30 June 2016, international terminal building with carrying
amount of RMB167,936,977 (original cost of RMB186,133,521) was
pledged as collateral for Haikou Meilan’s long-term borrowings of
RMB545,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB560,000,000), the borrowings
are specifically for financing the construction of international terminal
building, west gallery expansion and other auxiliary projects, with the
Company and Haikou Meilan being the joint borrowers.

SRBMN/ARETT)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(6) EJZEHE (#)

(a)

REFAEERAMEBERNINE
23l A A R #445332607C A B A R
3071117 (B Z=2015%F6 B30H 1F6f@ A :
R A ANREE29689,916TC A R AR
232,4347T) °

R20114F8H26H - AEE B )F O X
B RT R IS BB A UG A2 - G AE
BT TRERUNEMEISRET
EEFREE BE (MEEe)@) « B
IR K BEE T2 2013F E 5%
T #54 [E 7F & B A K #236,748,630
T(EERMUEEEREARARE
186,133,521t EM T ERER AR
#50,615,1097C) * F20165F6 4308 -
ZHBHIRNEERAEERARE
220,664,0807C (20159F 1283180 « BR M@
EBEAAR2233526047T) @ BB M
MENEREEEEAAAREEOE
MEE - MILEAERERTIEER
015F1I0AEIWHEEEEEAR
#5601,120,4417C * F20165E6 4308 -
ZHBHIRENEERAEEARARK
589,686,5287C (2015124310 : BR @&
EEBARYS98431,74570) " HEE
EREE BT IER -

R20165F6A308  BREEBEAARE
167,936,9777C (R 1B & A K %186,133,521
L) MBIBRMILE - (ERBOEBA
R #545,000,0007T & # {5 RAU K| 9
(20159128318 = A R 560,000,000
TL) BN FEIEARBIEME - M
UHIE TR IR R IR 7 TA2 DA R H b 35 e
ETRZEZRER  BOEHELQA
RZETRERERA °
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(7)

(8)

(Continued)

TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

Construction in progress (7) £ZIE
Including:
Transfer to Interest
Increase in  fixed assets Accumulated capitalization Interest
31 December current in current 30 June interest in current capitalization
2015 period period 2016 capitalization period rate
BRER  Hi:xH x5
20155 THEA 20165 ERf BRER RRER
128318 KHE BEEE 6A30A RiteE  EX(eE BR{LE
(Note 4(6))
(Wit me)
Terminal complex project ~ JhRTARA B 524932330 493,363,008 - 1,018295338 266245338 54,803,008 6.88%
Phase Il expansion project  fIAiE — HiiEE T2 8550000 26,948,622 - 35498622 35498622 26948622 7.93%
Restruction of old buildings Z&HiET 2 13415,623 37,896,294 (51,311,917) - - -
Other projects HiTHR1ER 21,653,302 7,807,578 (27,152,369) 2,308,511 = =
568,551,255 566,015,502 (78464,286)  1,056,102,471 301,743,960 81,751,630
Intangible assets (8) BEEE
Land use right
T fERARE
Cost JRE
30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015 20165F6 A30H &2015F 12 A31H 224,715,283
Accumulated amortization RETHEEE
31 December 2015 20154124318 (47,005,380)
Amortization in current period AN HAHESE (1,985,881)
30 June 2016 201696 H30H (48,991,261)
Carrying amount FREHEE
30 June 2016 20166 H30H 175,724,022
31 December 2015 201512 H31H 177,709,903
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(8) Intangible assets (Continued)
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(a)

Amortization expenses of RMB1,985,881 (for the six months ended
30 June 2015: RMB1,985,881) were charged to operating costs in the
current period.

International terminal building and its auxiliary projects were put
into use in 2013 (Note 4(6)(b)). As at 30 June 2016, land use rights
of the relevant projects amounted to RMB42,719,658 (original
cost of RMB45,078,000) (31 December 2015: carrying amount of
RMB43,123,945, original cost of RMB45,078,000), the land use right
certificate is currently held by Haikou Meilan.

As at 30 June 2016, land use rights with carrying amount of
RMB8,345,359 (original cost of RMB11,852,138) (31 December 2015:
carrying amount of RMB8,469,301, original cost of RMB11,852,138)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s US dollars long-term
borrowings of RMB921,736,800 (31 December 2015: RMB1,298,720,000)
(Note 4(20)(a)).

As at 30 June 2016, land use rights with carrying amount of
RMB68,436,078 (original cost of RMB86,905,771) (31 December 2015:
carrying amount of RMB69,232,255, original cost of RMB86,905,771)
were pledged as collateral for Haikou Meilan’s long-term borrowings of
RMB545,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB560,000,000), the borrowing
is specifically for financing international terminal building, west gallery
expansion and other auxiliary projects, and the Company and Haikou
Meilan are the joint borrowers.

SRBMN/ARETT)

(8)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

BREE (M)

(a)

A ERNEENBESEAARKE
1,985,8817C (& £201546 A30H 1t61E
A AR#19858817T) @+ 2T A&

TS BIR MuLE KA TREE
B R2013F % A A (M sEme) (b)) -
M2016%F6A30H Z TR MA@/ L i
FREREEELN R AKK42719658
JC (RE : A R #45,078,0007T) (2015
FNANAE: KEEBEAORARE
43,123,9457T  [RE A/ A K ¥45,078,000
JL) T REE MBS R R
ﬁ o

R201656A308 REEBEAARK
8,345,359 T (IR B & A R 11,852,138
7T) (20155128318 : (R m B E A
AR #8460301 L RE B AR
11,852,1387T) ML {F A # - {ERT
A AR #921,736,8007T B 2 TT f& FLAY
IR (2015FF 128318 : IEARE
1,298,720,0007T,) (B EEPH(20)(a)) ©

R2016F6A30H  REEBEAARE
68,436,0787C (JR B & A R 86,905,771
7t) (20155128318 : R E B E A
AR #6923225570 REBEABARE
86,905,77170) W) LH{EFA#E - {EARE
O ER A R ¥545,000,0007T & 85 {8 3%
B 1K HR ) (20158128310 0 AR ¥
560,000,0007T) * #% f& B E 18 A 7 B IR
fuhiE - MU EEBER TEUR
Hi iR ETREREE  BOFE
MEAR R R AZEROERERA °
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(Continued)

(8) Intangible assets (Continued)

(e)

The carrying amount of land use rights by regions and years of

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(8) BIEEE (#)
() TIHFEMBEILMAENRNFRD MM

limitation are analysed as follows: ™~
30June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 A30H 20155 12H31H
Inside Mainland China — LA B Ay —
between 10 to 50 years 102|50%F 54,208,573 55,013,653
over 50 years S0 LA | 121,515,449 122,696,250
175,724,022 177,709,903

(9) Deferred tax assets

(a)

Deferred income tax assets — before offset

(9) BEEZFREHEE
(@) REBHOBIEFAESHEE

Six months ended 30 June

BZE6A30H 161 A
2016 2015
2016 20154
Opening balance AR %R 7,816,592 13,156,516
Recognized in the income statement  FAFER AR (398,062) (191,478)
Closing balance HAREREE 7,418,530 12,965,038

(b) Asat 30 June 2016, no deferred income tax liabilities of the Group

were recognized (31 December 2015: nil).

(b) M2016F6H308 @ REE BRI
MAfE (20156128318 : &) -
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(10) Other non-current assets

60

SRBMN/ARETT)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(10) Eth R B EE

30June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 H30H 2015512 H31H

Advances for terminal complex project (a) FBfTULRTAR A B8 T2 7K (a) 341,213,598 452,900,683

Advances for acquisition agreement (b) TESTICHERE B 3R (b) 570,000,000 570,000,000
Advance payments for land use rights of

Phase Il Expansion Project (c) AN ZHIEE TR T (o) 850,000,000 600,000,000

Advances for other projects HmE TER 19,130,093 33,753,321

1,780,343,691 1,656,654,004

Up to the period ended 30 June 2016, the Group paid RMB1,093,263,598 to
Yangpu Guoxing Construction Co., Ltd. (“Yangpu Guoxing”) in connection
with the construction of terminal complex project (31 December 2015:
RMB766,390,683), of which RMB752,050,000 (31 2015:
RMB313,490,000) was transferred to construction in progress. Details of the

December

terminal complex project are set out in Note 7(5)(b).

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Haikou Meilan entered into an
equity transfer agreement pursuant to which, Haikou Meilan agreed to transfer
100% of the equity interest in Haikou Meilan Airport Assets Management Co.,
Ltd. to the Company at a consideration of RMB604,800,000. Up to the period
ended 30 June 2016, the Group paid the consideration of RMB570,000,000 to
Haikou Meilan (31 December 2015: RMB570,000,000). Details of the acquisition
agreement are set out in Note 7(5)(c).

In current period, the Company prepaid RMB250,000,000 to the government
for the land use rights of the Meilan Airport Phase Il Expansion Project
("Phase Il Expansion Project”). Up to the period ended 30 June 2016, the
Company paid totalling RMB850,000,000 for the land use rights (31 December
2015: RMB600,000,000). Details of Phase Il Expansion Project are set out in
Note 7(5)(d).

HZE2016F6A308 * ARRIREXNHAF
THEETRREZRARAR (FHERE]) &
EWBEBRRIS U A EBIEEHEN IR
R A AN R %1,093,263,5987C (2015512 A31
B AR766,390,6837T) @ &5 T E 4
EE{EE T2 ARY752,050,0007T (20154
128318 + A R#313490,0007T) ° U B 4%
BERIENFABRB2EMEEO)D) -

2015511 A138 © AR A BB OEEEETR
BEERZ  BOXHRAEER M T
BEEBEEARQAI0WNE  EEBAR
#604,800,0007T ° # £20165F6 A308 © &
BRI 48 A X/ A R570,000,000
7t (201512 A31H « AR #570,000,000) °
REERBENTABERAFL2EMEL0O)
Q-

RAH - RABIGEBES —HERER
(IZHEZEEE ) 2 A R %250,000,000
TR - B ZE2016%F6 8308 © ARRIE
2t A R #850,000,0007T £ 5 (2015
128318 + A B ¥600,000,000) c — Hi &
BIEANFABERFL2EMELEG)C) -
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(11) Short-term borrowings (11) 2 RIE =
30June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015512 H31H
Secured borrowings (a) BHERG) 162,520,102 =

(@) As at 30 June 2016, bank borrowings of US$24,508,400 (equivalent to
RMB162,520,102) with interest rate 0.20% per annum were secured by fixed

deposits of RMB160,000,000.

(12) Accounts payable

The ageing analysis of accounts payable, based on the dates of recognition,

is set out as follows:

@@ H2016F6A30H - $R1TE FRE TR 124508400
7T (& AR#162,5201027T) R ARE
160,000,000 T HAITF RIEAER - EREA

0.20% °

(12) FE1 B~

FEARRFIRE AR A IR0 RREE AT 20 TS

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

20166 H30H 20159 12H31H
Within 90 days 90K LA 14,546,203 14,282,146
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 3,183,607 4,444 660
over 180 days 180 KA L 7,256,174 337,200
24,985,984 19,064,006
(13) Advances from customers (13) AW E

30June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 A30H 2015%F12H31H
User fees of VIP rooms EEEGTHE 7,696,686 7,561,642

Consideration of land use rights T Hb{E AR E K
(Note 7 (5)(a-1)) (H1at+(5)(a-1)) 3,128,973 3,128,973
Takeoff and landing fees e 798,245 149,638
11,623,904 10,840,253
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(14) Employee benefits payable

SRBMN/ARETT)

(14) FE1 B T % BH

30 June 2016

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

31 December 2015

201656 H30H 2015512 A431H

Short-term employee benefits payable &1~ %5 HA %7 Al 20,760,127 26,852,259

Defined contribution plans payable R E RS 40,130 1,050
Termination benefits payable

(due within one year) FEREEREN] (—FNEIEIR R ) 766,812 1,028,591

21,567,069 27,881,900

(15) Taxes payable (15) EXH &

30June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 H30H 201512 H431H

Corporate income tax payable FERR I ZEFREH 31,294,688 40,227,479

Business tax payable JER E T 1,968,196 2,765,314

Property tax payable EREER 123,394 602,212

Individual income tax payable FER B AFR1SHL 269,321 893,529

Others Hih 64,033 1,318,958

33,719,632 45,807,492

(16) Interests payable (16) FE11 7 &

30June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 H30H 2015512 H31H

Interests of borrowings fEFRF 8 1,718,683 205,628

Interests of corporate bonds (Note 4(21)) ‘R EIEHF B (HfatL921)) 24,600,000 49,746,667

26,318,683 49,952,295
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(17) Dividends payable (17) EAT R F
30June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 2015512 H31H
H-Shares held by domestic investors BTHN E RN E BRRS SR 30,055,500 499,500
H-Shares held by foreign investors THN ETHIINE ARAR R 24,506,283 =
54,561,783 499,500
(18) Other payables (18) Bt FET 5%
30June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 2015512 H31H
Airport ground services fee payable FEARHR Y T Bl 75 & 147,122,617 108,939,962
Construction fee and
quality assurance payables EANREIRZEIEERE 157,730,140 101,881,919
Guarantee deposits AR RER 25,813,968 21,004,567
Accrued airlines development subsidy — TB1Z i 4% B 24 AL =X 13,061,000 13,061,000
Accrued airlines increment subsidy TEIRM AR IS S HH ALK - 3,176,336
Others Hih 30,051,357 35,695,504
373,779,082 283,759,288

(19) Non-current liabilities due within one year

(19) —FAFRHIFH RB R E

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

201656 H30H 2015512 H31H
Long-term borrowings due within
one year (Note 4(20)) —F AR REBAER (B:70900) 995,111,372 1,421,619,464
Long-term payables due within
one year (Note 4(22)) —ERI N REENAR (HZm22) 39,330,208 39,792,890
1,034,441,580 1,461,412,354
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(20) Long-term borrowings

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(20) RAIE =

30June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 H30H 2015412318
Secured borrowings (a) HIRfERE) 911,111,371 1,341,619,464
Asset-backed security borrowings (b) B EEHLERDB) 950,907,964 1,012,955,163
Less: Long-term borrowings due B —ERTEEHIER
within one year (Note 4(19)) (H1aE09(19)) (995,111,372) (1,421,619,464)
866,907,963 932,955,163

As at 30 June 2016, the weighted average interest rate of long-term
borrowings is 7.19% per annum (31 December 2015: 6.74%).

(@) As at 30 June 2016, bank borrowings of US$139,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB921,736,800) (31 December 2015: US$200,000,000, equivalent to
RMB1,298,720,000) were secured by 51% equity interests of Hainan Meilan
International Airport Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Cargo”) held by the
Company (Note 5(1)(a)) and the Group’s land use rights with carrying amount
of RMB8,345,359 (original cost: RMB11,852,138) (Note 4(8)(c)). Interest is payable
every quarter and the principal is due for repayment by installments prior to
30 December 2016.

On 2 July 2015, the Company entered into an arrangement with a trust whereby
the Company obtained financing from the trust of RMB1,100,000,000 under
which the Company's entitlements to aviation service income from 1 May 2015
to 30 April 2020 were pledged to the trust for issuing an asset-backed security
("ABS"). As at 30 June 2016, the remaining balance of the external borrowings
of the ABS amounted to RMB950,907,964. The assets and liabilities of the ABS
have been consolidated into the Group's financial statements. Details are set
out in Note 8.

64

M2016F6A308 + KEIEFA NiEFIHF
FEAE719% (2015F12A318 : 6.74%) ©

@@  M0165F6 308 + SRITEFEEIT/RIE1390000007T
(r & A B %921,736,8007T) (2015412 A
318 :+ 3£ 782000000007 T & A R #&
1,298,720,0007T) =B AR A A )8R XM
ERgEEERRETAR ([EHHE))
S1%REERE R (R0 @) RAKER
EEEHARES3453597 (REAARE
11,852,13870) 2 L3 FRE(E AR (i sE
ME))  MEBFEEXMN—IR  KeER
2016512 H30H AT D HAEIE -

R2015F7H28 « "ARIBA2015F5A1HE
20204F4 A30 A HARE A AR 2 &) i 22 AR 7% 45 &
WARERMAER  B—REFERAFTLT —
BHEEZFE ([BEZH] T8 - BA
= ERARE1,100,000,0007T ° 201696
A308 @ ZIEEEZHLEIMERRTERA
R#950,907,9647T - Z B EBH LRI EER
BEEWAREENTB]RE - SFABERFE
AN
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TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(21) Corporate bonds (21) A AE*
Issuance Amortization
31 December in current Issuance in current 30 June
2015 period expenses period 2016
2015 20165
12A31H FERT BITER REE 64308
Seven-year corporate bonds TEHRRES 794,952,116 = = 531,036 795,483,152
Three-year corporate bonds IEHNRIEF - 500,000,000 (5,000,000) 270,884 495,270,884
794,952,116 500,000,000 (5,000,000) 801,920 1,290,754,036
Related information of bonds is as follows: BHFABERENT :

Issuance
Par value Issuance date Maturity amount
E{E BITHHE BEH R BITEE

13 March 2012 7 years
Seven-year corporate bonds (a) 7EHRBIEH ) 800,000,000 201243 H13R 74 800,000,000

27 April 2016 3 years
Three-year corporate bonds (b) 3FHAR RIMESHDb) 500,000,000 2016547278 36 500,000,000
S 1,300,000,000 1,300,000,000

Accrued interest of the bonds is analysed as below:

B2 EETR ST

Interest accrued

FESHFIE

Interest Interest
31 December accrued in paid in 30 June
2015 current period current period 2016
2015%12A31H AHEA e RIS FEEMAFE  20165F6H30H
Seven-year corporate bonds JTEBNRIE S 49,746,667 30,853,333 (62,400,000) 18,200,000
Three-year corporate bonds SFEHARIES = 6,400,000 = 6,400,000
49,746,667 37,253,333 (62,400,000) 24,600,000
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(21) Corporate bonds (Continued)

(a)

Pursuant to Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2011] No. 2082 approved by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company issued corporate
bonds of RMB800,000,000 to designated investors which have been
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since 13 March 2012. The
maturity of the bonds is 7 years with fixed interest rate of 7.8% per
annum and the interest is payable annually on 15 March of each year
and the principal is repayable upon maturity.

Pursuant to Shen Zheng Han [2016] No.119 approved by the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange”), the Company is
authorised to issue Renminbi corporate bonds within the limit of
principal amount of RMB3 billion and maturity of not more than 5
years through private placements. On 27 April 2016, the Company
issued the phase | corporate bonds of RMB500,000,000 to designated
investors which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The
maturity of the bonds is 3 years, the fixed interest rate is 7.3% per
annum, interest is payable annually on 27 April of each year and the

principal is repayable upon maturity.

(22) Long-term payables
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SRBMN/ARETT)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(21) R E/EF (&)

(a)

KHBRESEBEREEZESRENY
[20111208255% X AZfE + 20124F3 H13 A A
NAIRN EBBLEZ GG ERIRES
NFE1TEEE A R ®800,000,0007T + HA
RAEEFHARES - WEHKAEF
RERE  BEFHNER78%  BFH
B—X NEBAEF3IAI5A &g
FEEIEA —RMEEE -

KRNFBHFRZ S (DRRFT]) FRE XK
[2016]1195% X #Z 4 + 2K 2 &) 7] B 3@ IF
AABITHARNSBBRITESEER
ARE30ETT - BIR T HBSFERIA A
&% ° 20165F4 F27 B RN RQ AR R BT
MEEREBREERFELAHAEBEITE—BHA
R#500,000,0007C A AIfE % @ EHHIR
R3F o IWEFKAEFRFR S -
EFFRE73%  BFEHE—K  F&E
HAESF4A278  ALEEHE—KX
MEE -

(22) RRGE(T 5

30June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 A30H 201512 831H
Payables for finance lease FERTEE SR 85,550,063 101,970,597
Less: finance lease payable due W —FEADHREARE
within one year (Note 4(19)) MEK (Hatmm9) (39,330,208) (39,792,890)
46,219,855 62,177,707
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(Continued)
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(22) Long-term payables (Continued)

Payables for finance lease are analysed as follows:

EBRERKROGERAR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2016 & &= 20164

(22) RAEGES 5 (&)
e L& E SRR A

30 June 2016

6A308 LE6fE A HAME

TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

31 December 2015

201656 A30H 2015124318
Payables to Jiangsu Finance Leasing
Co,, Ltd. BN IHEREEERAR 60,161,360 71,977,039
Payables to Dongyin Finance Leasing  JE[MHRIRREHE (X))
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd. BRAT] 25,388,703 29,993,558
85,550,063 101,970,597

Payables for finance lease represent the minimum lease payments for the
Group'’s fixed assets held under finance leases less unrecognized finance

charges.

As at 30 June 2016, the unrecognized financing charge amounted to

BREE o

ENREMERSAKERETEABEEE
MREHEMNRBEHIRRERREERRD

MR2016F6 308 * AERNBMEEBHKRT

RMB7,337,475 (31 December 2015: RMB10,675,666). B AN R 873374757 (20156F12 318 + A
R#10,675,6667T) °
(23) Capital surplus (23) EAXRE
Increase in
31 December current period Decrease in 30 June
2015 (Note) current period 2016
2015128318 &REEm (4/:7) AHEL 201656 A30H
Share premium RS (B 598,983,655 - - 598,983,655
Other capital surplus — Share of Hin g ARNRFE —
changes in equity other than B AZER
comprehensive income and WIRBEMREE
profit distribution of W g A0 2 B
investments accounted DA Eo A R 21
for using equity method 2] (15,974,899) 348,761,521 - 332,786,622
Others HAh, 100,500,999 - - 100,500,999
683,509,755 348,761,521 - 1,032,271,276
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(23) Capital surplus (Continued) (23) EX L& ()
31 December Increase in Decrease in 30 June
2014 current period current period 2015
2014128318 ZRHASE AERS  2015%F6A30R
Share premium f& A B 598,983,655 = = 598,983,655
Other capital surplus - Share of HEMERRE —
changes in equity other than AR EH
comprehensive income and WA BN
profit distribution of Briza Was AN
investments accounted FE 2 BLLASNY
for using equity method H R EE) (30,898,874) = = (30,898,874)
Others HAitb 100,500,999 - - 100,500,999
668,585,780 - - 668,585,780

Note: The increase in other capital surplus in current period is mainly due to

additional capital injection by the minority shareholders of Sanya Phoenix

International Airport Co., LTD. ("Phoenix Airport “), a subsidiary of HNA Airport

Holdings. As the capital injected by the minority shareholders are over their

respective share of net assets of Phoenix Airport, the capital reserves of HNA

Airport Holdings increased accordingly. As the Group has accounted for the

investment in HNA Airport Holdings using equity method, the capital surplus

of the Group increased accordingly.

(24) Undistributed profits

HaE - AHMEMEARTRAIL - B2 AN
BRRBMESZERNFRR=5EER
RS EREELR (REKS]) 1
BRERHHIZE  ARABASRAES
BEMSHFEEMNRE  BRESIERN
BARNTEMEEN  ARERERERE
B AR BRSO REAERIEAEE
M EMEARATE

(24) A 7 Bl F B

As at 30 June 2016, undistributed profits include subsidiaries’ surplus
reserve attributable to the Company of RMB2,900,615 (31 December 2015:
RMB2,900,615). No appropriation has been made by the subsidiaries during
this period (for the six months ended 30 June 2015: nil).

2016556 H308 » RO A HEPBEESHEBR
B ARHTFRARIEBATERREARE 2900615
7T (20155128318 + AR¥2,90061570) + &
FFRARANHRETIREBREAFTNERA
& (BZE2015%F6 A30H 1t6f@A : ) »

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
Declared dividends paid in current period B S k2 8 IR & & 56,785,560 43,062,400
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

(24) Undistributed profits (Continued)
Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders” annual general meeting on 18
May 2016, 2015 final dividend of RMBO0.120 per share, calculated by issued
shares of 473,213,000, amounting to RMB56,785,560 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2015: 2014 final dividend of RMB43,062,400), were declared
and paid.

(25) Revenue and operating costs, general and administrative

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(24) K7 BCF B (48)
BIE2016F5A18HREAF RS RZE - &
ANAMEERRIKE015FERAE K
A - SRREF A AREE0I207T - HE BT
11473213000l 5t & - IRER S RFARE
56,785,5607T (B 2201556 A30H LL618 A : &
0014 E R EIIR & IR FI A R #543,062,400
JT) °

(25) EXRAFERZKE - EEER

expenses
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
Revenue EERA
Aeronautical: Mz 2R -
Passenger service charges EEREE 138,621,709 122,498,277
Refund of Civil Aviation
Development Fund EMmEZERESREMAM 114,120,285 97,355,630
Ground handling service income b [ AR 7S & 57,726,146 44,105,915
Fees and related charges on aircraft
takeoff and landing TR FEPE LRI E 47,167,369 41,746,577
357,635,509 305,706,399
Non-aeronautical: FEMZE MR ¢
Franchise income FrRFE R 156,066,065 134,828,821
Freight and packaging income BERBERA 42,799,102 72,256,810
Rental income HeWA 18,256,191 18,946,343
VIP room income EEEZWA 10,507,918 7,211,978
Parking fee income ZEIZIRA 9,256,545 8,586,217
Other income H U A 32,788,753 24,157,204
269,674,574 265,987,373
627,310,083 571,693,772
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(25) Revenue and operating costs, general and administrative

70

(Continued)

expenses (Continued)

Operating costs and general and administrative expenses include the

following items:

SRBMN/ARETT)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(25) ERRAFIERKA - EEER (#)

EEKANERERTIZHATEEBK

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
Employee salaries and benefit expenses ETTENENER 69,296,290 59,228,480
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEBEENEER 44,840,371 29,922,350
Outsource labour costs BEKEANEEBR 28,271,113 19,207,407
Airport and logistic services fee W5 R NEN AR B RIS B 25,129,317 20,110,760
Utilities KEE 16,901,606 12,966,076
Repairs and maintenance “wIEE R 16,624,057 9,727,086
Other taxes H b Fi18 5,102,860 5,159,096
Packaging materials AR AR 3,850,538 3,653,380
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center EMBEEHFLFESE 3,208,569 2,710,833
Amortization of land use rights + 3 (5 P R 1,985,881 1,985,881
Travelling expenses EIRE 1,233,734 893,744
Audit fees T E 726,000 660,000
Others =i} 44,797,494 75,930,827
261,967,830 242,155,920
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

(26) Financial expenses — net

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B RIIEERBA] -

(26) IBEH — FH

TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
2016%F 20154
Interest expenses FEZH 124,149,155 84,588,582
Including: bank borrowings Hrh o RITIE 82,673,680 50,155,439
corporate bonds RNEfESH 38,411,354 31,858,608
finance leases BAEME 3,064,121 2,574,535
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) FE 5 ®i8k (hz) 27,714,184 (2,648,577)
Less: interest and exchange o MBI R
losses capitalisation BE B R E AL (81,751,630) (51,114,105)
interest income FBUA (25,650,460) (20,023,074)
Others Hi 329,337 560,825
44,790,586 11,363,651
(27) Investment income (27) K& Wzt
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
20165 20154
Share of profit of an associate — AR E R
HNA Airport Holdings TE W — BMEISTERR 24,337,214 10,802,395
Share of profit of an associate — AR E R RE
Haikou Decheng BEBK —BOEH (29,621) (3,131)
24,307,593 10,799,264

No significant restrictions on the repatriation of investment income.

Investment income derived from unlisted companies for the period
amounted to RMB24,307,593 (for the six months ended 30 June 2015:

RMB10,799,264).

AREB N FEREWEE B R E ARG -

AEREAE EHEQATNRERZAARE
24,307,5937T (ExZE 201556 A30R 1F61E A -

ABR#10,799,2647T) °
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(Continued)

(28) Income tax expenses

SRBMN/ARETT)

(28) FriZ# &

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H IL6fE B
2016 2015
20165 20154
Current income tax 2 ERTEH 78,580,425 75,449,692
Deferred income tax RIEFTIS TR 398,061 191,478
78,978,486 75,641,170

The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on the applicable tax

rates and total profit presented in the consolidated financial statements to

the income tax expenses is as follows:

HERE G A BROFEEBERB AR
AAENAEHANSAEHERNT

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6fE A

2016 2015

2016%F 2015%F

Total profit NDEEEEE 340,050,968 312,266,135
Income tax expenses calculated RASEERTEFED

at applicable tax rates Frisai 85,012,742 78,066,534

Income not subject to tax JEFE AT UL A (6,076,898) (2,699,816)

Costs and expenses not deductible
for tax purposes TEMBREIRK A K& E B 42,642 274,452
78,978,486 75,641,170
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(Continued)

(29) Earnings per share

(a)

ERERRAERAT
L SN T

— =
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TREBU/ARKET)

SOtEr I ERRIE B MR (@)

(29) & 1% W 25

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing consolidated net

profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding:

(a)

EAGREENEBRE AR EER
RE A GEFFER AR AR BTE
SRR IR T B E -

Six months ended 30 June

Consolidated net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company
(RMB)

Weighted average number of outstanding
ordinary shares of the Company (share)

FENAD AL BRRER
BHENE (ARET)

RRRBRITHEINE B
IIREFHER ()

Basic earnings per share (RMB)

EA M (ARET)

HZ6H30H1t6AA
2016 2015
20165 20155
253,298,200 232,036,002
473,213,000 473,213,000
0.54 0.49

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the consolidated

net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company

adjusted the profit and loss impact of the dilutive potential ordinary

shares, if any, by the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding. As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares

in current period (for the six months ended 30 June 2015: nil), diluted

earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share.

(b)

mESRKENUREMEE BT LB
BRAREENDTEBR AR R L BRRE
B & O F AR A AR B ARQ A5
TENEBROMEFLSEFTE - B
RE ARRTAGFEAEREENE
B (B £2015F6 8308 1H61E
A &) At BESRKEERE
NGRS o
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4 Notes to the consolidated financial statements SOt SRR IE B MsE (@
(Continued)

(30) Dividends (30) K7
Six months ended 30 June
B ZE6A30H 161 A
2016 2015
2016 20154
Proposed 2016 interim dividend of HIR20164F 1 BARR

RMBO0.094 per share BRARK0.0947T

(for the six months ended 30 June 2015: (B =2015%F6 A308 LL6fd A -

RMBO0.120 per share) FARE0.1207T) 44,483,000 56,785,560
An interim dividend of 2016 of RMB0.094 per share, totalling RMB44,483,000 M20165F8H25H » E = & & & 5 k2016
was proposed by the Board on 25 August 2016 (2015 interim dividend: FHHRE RN ERARB0.0947T - 5T
RMBO.120 per share, totalling RMB56,785,560). This dividend has not been RN R #44,483,0007T (20155F 1 HRIR & AR
recognized as a liability in these interim financial statements for the six M gRARMKBI20T BEFABARK
months ended 30 June 2016. 56,785,5607T) © & £20165F6 A30H 168 A

HAR - UL SRR R AE T BB T ek R
RAEE-
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5 Interest in other entity i EHMERPHNER
(1) Interest in subsidiaries (1) EFRAHFH

(a)  Structure of the enterprise group

Place of Place of Principal
Type of entity  operation  registration activities

EANER TELE e ERME

@) IPREELEX

Registered Interest Voting  Way of
capital held rights  achieve
EE FRE
dZMEx  BREA thl BEAR

Haikou Meilan International

Airport Duty Free Shop Ltd.  Limited liability

("Meilan Duty free shop”) company Haikou Haikou Retail sales
BEENERERKS 2N

BRAR ([XH2H]) BREMARR BOM y=4uii HERH A

Provision of cargo

Limited liability transportation
Meilan Cargo (Note) company Haikou Haikou service
XWEE (W2 BREMRAR BOM gAm RETERSE

Note: The Company holds 51% of equity interest and 60% of the voting rights
in Meilan Cargo. The key operating and financial decisions of Meilan
Cargo should be made by its board of directors with the approval of at
least half of the directors attended at the board meeting. Three out of
five directors of Meilan Cargo are nominated by the Company. Therefore,
the Company holds 60% of the voting rights of Meilan Cargo.

As at 30 June 2016, 51% interests of Meilan Cargo held by the Company
was pledged as collateral for bank borrowings of US$139,000,000
(equivalent to RMB921,736,800). Details are set out in Note 4(20)(a).

There is no restriction of the use of the Group’s assets nor the settlement
of the liability of the Group.

1,000,000 95% 100%  Setup

1,000,000 95% 100%  RVEE
20,000,000 51% 60%  Setup
20,000,000 51% 60%  RUME

Hret - RRREEMEEORRLLHIR51% - X
HEETELLERUBHORRAESTSE
B BFEGREEVELHEFEESSS
B Dz —WEEREBTRBEER  XH
EEBEGXEHE ARABAHEIKE
3BREE  MARRABEANRRELAR
60% ©

201656 A30H - AARIFENEREE
519 1 15 A3 TR T B FUR 139,000,000
7T (A ARE921,7368007T) KIEH » &
B2 R M0 a)

AEETFEEREEEENSEREAE
T ERIRR ) o
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5

Interest in other entity (Continued)

(2) Interestin associates

76

(a)

SRBMN/ARETT)

7 EHEtERPAER
(2) EHELFFHELR

Basic information of significant associates (a) EEBETENEREE
Strategic
Place of Place of impact on
operation registration Principal activities group activity Interest held
HEBRED
TERE N it e e REAREKMY R IR LB
Property development,
Haikou, Haikou, resort operation,
Hainan Hainan eco-agriculture development
Haikou Decheng Province Province and gardening Yes 30%
WMERE  KEEREE
8O O c1niy) FIrEZ = 30%
Airport operation and ground
Haikou, Haikou, handling services; airport
Hainan Hainan investment, holding,
HNA Airport Holdings (Note) Province Province constructing and rebuilding  Yes 24.5%
WinE L B MM E R
=Tk BEAE BERE  BR - 2R
BB (Fit) gOm gOm B = 24.5%

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Note : The place of incorporation and business of HNA Airport Group are in the

“E

PRC, and there is no business relationship between the Group and HNA

Airport Group. The equity interest held by the Group is 24.5% and the

voting rights are 1/7. Although the percentage of the voting rights held

by the Group is less than 20%, since one out of seven directors in the

board of HNA Airport Holdings is nominated by the Group, the Group

is able to exercise significant influence over HNA Airport Holdings and

therefore, regarded it as an associate of the Group.

HiaE - BRESEREENZEME R TR

AEE S F R ERE DR AERE

o

EEMYERBIEN  BAEEE
¥ EMAR - REBLGMIES
7 1S B 435 AR EE 1 5524.5% » RORKELL
Bl A&1/7 » R R20% + 1B 2 G
WIS R EFS/TZEFTHAIEH
REB TR KM AEBEHLEE
MBS EREMERTE  BEHE
EREDERHE -
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AY

Segment information 7

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”") of the Group has been
identified as the executive directors and senior management led by the
chairman of the Company. The CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The CODM considers that the Group conducts its business within one
business segment — the business of operating an airport and provision
of related services in the PRC and the Group also operates within one
geographical segment because its revenues are primarily generated from
and its assets are located in the PRC.

Related parties and related party transactions e
Information of the parent company (1)

(@) General information of the parent company:

2 EES
FEEGEREERRETEAVTESRE
RERETHRAEEE - EEERMA
BEAFEEERNOEER - EEEEN L
MR ELERD BIKIE ©

EEERAR/RANEEER —ETEAKLER
% BNFE R B AR & — (@ 1435 0 12 48 B AR
%o A ARAREOHREEEZREF
CHEEMuNTE - AREER—Ei
B SR o

BRERITERERERS
BRAER
(@ BAREAER :

Place of registration Nature of business

= it E3 Y3
Haikou Meilan Haikou, Hainan Province Air transportation and ground handling services
pisImESy BrEEgam TR fin = 8 o Mot E IR AR TS

(b) Registered capital and changes in registered capital of the parent

(b) BAREMERNRAEY

company:
31 December Increase in

2015 current period 30 June 2016

2015F12HA31H AERIE AN 2016F6H30H

Haikou Meilan EOER 2,975,938,781 129,739,600 3,105,678,381

(c)  The proportions of equity interests and voting rights in the Company
held by the parent company:

(0 B RFH AR B L PR 5RO
LBl

30 June 2016 and
31 December 2015

201656 H30H K&

201512 H31H

% Interest held % Voting rights

A% L 1% FORELE B0

Haikou Meilan BOZER 50.19 50.19
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Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

Information of other related parties

SRBMN/ARETT)

t BBLTRERERS @

(2) EEBTELR

Relationship with the Group
ER A5 B Y BA R

HNA Group Company Limited (“HNA Group”)

BREEARAR ([/BHEE D)

Hainan Developing Holding Company Limited (“Hainan Developing”)

BEEERERARQR ([E#RZER])

Hainan Airlines Company Limited (“Hainan Airlines”)

BEMZEROERAR (HEEMz=E])

Hainan Airlines Food Company Co., Ltd. ("Hainan Food")
AEmERmARLAR ([BREm])

Hainan E-card Management Co., Ltd. (“Hainan E-card”)

BE-TENEEEROERLIR (MEE—FED

Beijing Capital Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Capital Airlines”)
ItREHMEERAR ([E#MZE])

HNA Group Finance
TR S

HNA Safe Car Rental Co., Ltd. ("HNA Safe”)
BB RAEREARA R (NEMARE])

Tianjin Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Airlines”)
KEMEBRETAR ([KEMZE]D)

Western Airlines Co., Ltd. ("Western Airlines”)
AXMEERETAT ([AZBMZE)

HNA Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. (“HNA Cargo”)
BMEEERAA (EMEE])

Has significant influence on the Parent
Company

HERRBEEATE

Has significant influence on the Parent
Company

HERAEEATE

Under control of Hainan Developing

SRR EIE H

Under control of HNA Group
G e B

Under control of HNA Group
XM B

Under control of HNA Group
G R B

Under control of HNA Group
X ER B I

Under control of HNA Group
G ER B

Under control of HNA Group
X ER B I

Under control of HNA Group
X B E

Under control of HNA Group
X ER B I
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7 Related parties and related party transactions + BHEITBEREREXS @)
(Continued)

(2) Information of other related parties (Continued) (2) BB 15T (&)
Relationship with the Group
ER A B WY BA R

Hainan meilan International Airport Travelling Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Travelling”) Under control of HNA Group

BEEREREISIRITHAREEAR ([ERRTALD X & B H) 2

Deer Jet Co,, Ltd. ("Deer Jet") Under control of HNA Group

—REMeBRABMEMEREERAR (=& 1) X 5 B H) 2

Hainan Eking Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Eking Technology”) Under control of HNA Group

B RRERGERAT (88 DR ) FBE BN

Yangpu Guoxing Under control of HNA Group

7 R B8 B X 5 B H) 2

Haidao Commercial Under control of HNA Group

IS TEES X 5 B H) 1 il

Hainan HNA China Duty Free Merchandise Co., Ltd. (‘HNA China Duty Free”") Under common control of HNA Group

BEEmPERTmERAR ([ERFT2]) X8 i SR B ) F R

Lucky Air Co., Ltd. (“Lucky Air") Under control of HNA Group

ErmEEMEEREET AR ([ZEEE]) X 5 B H) 2

Shanghai Deer Air Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Deer Air") Under control of HNA Group

FEEEABMERR AR ([ LESE]) X 5 B H) 2
(3) Significant related party transactions (3) EXBHEXS

(a)  Pricing policies (a) TEBHE
The Group's pricing on goods purchased from related parties, and REBEMBEHTRENERAR BB
services provided to or received from related parties are based on X SRR IRESEN
market price. The interest rates of deposits and the entrusted loans BRUAMSEEERTEEREM K&
maintained with related parties of the Group are mutually agreed EEREEETNRTERRERE
taking into consideration of deposit interest rates of commercial banks R E2ZERITR TR EL
over the same period. & EEETE -
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7 Related parties and related party transactions + BHEITBEREREXS @)
(Continued)

(3) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (3) BEABBXS (&)
(b)  Purchases of goods or services (b) IREBEEY)at e T

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6A30H L6fE A
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016F 20154 2016F 2015%F
Group Group Company Company
rEH rEE NN VYN
Haikou Meilan BOER 13,282,897 11,084,639 11,956,703 9,844,211
Related parties under XM B &
control of HNA group ol 21,993,221 56,074,382 21,184,355 18,794,130
35,276,118 67,159,021 33,141,058 28,638,341
(c)  Rendering of services () HHREH
Six months ended 30 June
EZ6H30H LL6fE A
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 2015%F 20165 20154
Group Group Company Company
iy 1] AEE NN AR
Related parties under control XS BT IR
of HNA group 2k 48,399,497 41,884,877 48,399,497 41,884,877
Related parties under control GBI
of Hainan developing )bl 73,737,814 64881621 73,737,814 60,734,891
Related parties under common X e B
control of HNA group +k R | g0 BB 7 3,750,281 3,178434 3,750,281 3,178434
Related parties with significant HELQRIBEX
influence on the Parent Company s/ 2/ 47,151 - 47,151 -
125,934,743 109,944,932 125,934,743 105,798,202
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7 Related parties and related party transactions + BHEITBEREREXS @)
(Continued)

(3) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (3) BEABBXE (&)

(d)

(e)

)

Lease expense (a) HEEAH

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6f8 A
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20155 20165 20154
Group Group Company Company
rEE AEE AT VYN
Meilan Cargo THEE - - 1,800,000 1,800,000
Remuneration of key management (e) FHRREEASFH
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
2016%F 20156
Remuneration of key management FAGEE TR A B T B 1,670,661 1,041,310
Key management personnel include executive directors, non-executive FREEABBEAQANITES
directors, president, vice president, company secretary, chief financial IEHITES « B BIER - RAW
officer and supervisors of the Company. E WKEERES -
Interest income " FLEMA
Six months ended 30 June
EZ6H30H LL6fEA
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016F 20155 20164 20154
Group Group Company Company
riN- | REE NN AR
Related parties under control ZEMEEEH
of HNA group Bkl 13,940,561 18,130,580 13,940,561 18,130,580
The interest rates on balances with related parties are mutually agreed PR B AT RR2EFGEEITRE
by the contracting parties, taking into consideration of deposit interest BRTF A R H IR FETE o

rates of commercial banks over the same period. 8]
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A

7 Related parties and related party transactions + BHEITBEREREXS @)

(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to related parties

(a) Cash at bank

(a) EBEEELED

(4) EXBBTEK - BHEGE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016F 2015 2016F 2015%F
6HA30H 12H318 6HA30H 12H318
Group Group Company Company
FEHE AEE AT AR7]
Related parties under control XM B 6
of HNA group kil 291,863,254 350,671,059 291,678,507 350,610,187
(b)  Accounts receivable (b) FEWRAEZ
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 2015%F 20165 20154
6HA30H 12H31H 6HA30H 12H318
Group Group Company Company
A%H A%HE AAH AR
Related parties with significant HENRIBEEKXR
influence on the Parent Company S/ 2B 181,150 134,450 181,150 134,450
Related parties under control S E BT A
of HNA group )i 26,564,137 31,127,558 26,564,137 30,563,990
Related parties under control GBI AE B
of Hainan developing ki 16,703,150 24,376,785 16,048,537 24,376,785
Related parties under common XEMEER
control of HNA group SR RO BEESE 77 574,329 792,860 574,329 792,860
44,022,766 56,431,653 43,368,153 55,868,085
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(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to related parties

(Continued)

(c)  Advances to suppliers

BRERROERAT
TN

Notes to the Financiol Statementsdd 3 13 £ % #

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 30 A 1F6f6E A HARI

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B RIIEERBA] -

© TFENHE

+ BERAIBERARRERS @)

TREBU/ARKET)

(4) EXBBITEK - BEHEGE (&)

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2016 2015 2016 2015

20165 20154 2016 2015%F

64308 128318 6A30H 12A31H

Group Group Company Company

TEE REE RAT] ViN/N|
Related parties under control BB

of HNA group ol 443,336,735 458,708,027 443,336,735 458,708,027

Haikou Meilan (Note 7(5)(c)) BOXE (BE+E06)0) 570,000,000 570,000,000 570,000,000 570,000,000

1,013,336,735  1,028,708,027 1,013,336,735  1,028,708,027

(d)  Other receivables (d) EfbEUR

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2016 2015 2016 2015

20164 20154 20164 20154

6H30H 12A318 6H30H 12H318

Group Group Company Company

~EHE &R RAF /NG|

Meilan Duty free shop EHEH - - 1,809,752 1,809,752
Related parties under control MBS 6

of HNA group kbl 1,180,770 1978518 1,145,290 1,954,701
Related parties under control GBI RRIEHIR

of Hainan developing E2)iya) 3,946,573 3478614 3,946,573 3,478,614

5,127,343 5,457,132 6,901,615 7,243,067
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7 Related parties and related party transactions + BHEITBEREREXS @)
(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to related parties (4) FEAFIE; 5 MEY - FE(T 2 IHEAEE (1)

(Continued)
(e) Interests receivable (e) [EWFIE
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 2015%F 2016F 20154
6A30H 12H31H 6HA30H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
S ] AEE AT Vi/NE]
Related parties under control BB
of HNA group EiEbal 1,319,500 1,122,387 1,319,500 1,122,387
() Long-term receivables due within one year (N —FLNERI R BT EN K
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 2015%F 2016F 20154
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12H318
Group Group Company Company
F5E AEE AT AR
Related parties under control ZEMEEEH
of HNA group B2k - 380,000,000 - 380,000,000
(g)  Accounts payable (9) [ETHEH
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016%F 20154 2016F 20154
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
r5E ] AT AR
Related parties under control ZEMEBEH
of HNA group EiEbal 17,160,372 15,431,236 17,160,372 15,431,236
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(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to related parties

BRERROERAT
TN

Notes to the Financiol Statementsdd 3 13 £ % #

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 30 A 1F6f6E A HARI

+ BERAIBERARRERS @)

TREBU/ARKET)

(4) EXBBITEK - BEHEGE (&)

(Continued)
(h)  Other payables (h) EmEMNZ
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 2015%F 2016F 2015%F
6A30H 12H31H 6A30H 12A31H
Group Group Company Company
S ] REE NN AR
Haikou Meilan HOER 259,245,699 187,643,210 250,167,980 179,499,533
Related parties under control XS BT IR
of HNA group )i 1,334,397 1,467,122 236,984 277,495
Related parties under control GBI
of Hainan developing ki) 10,636,618 10636618 10,623,230 10,623,230
Related parties with significant HENRAEATE
influence on the Parent Company B¢ 2,622 - 2,622 -
Meilan Cargo THEE - - 65,243,884 57,596,515
271,219,336 199,746,950 326,274,700 247,996,773
(i) Advances from customers ()  TEHUEE
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
20165 20154 20165 20155
6A30H 12A318 6H30H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
iy ] rEE AAE VAN
Haikou Meilan (Note 7(5)(a-1)) BOER (HEE£05)E1) 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973
Related parties under common X5 i 5 B ) 2 R A
control of HNA group E2)ia 61,901 61,901 - =
3,190,874 3,190,874 3,128,973 3,128,973
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Related parties and related party transactions + BEATBEERERS @)

(Continued)

(4) Significant receivables from and payables to related parties (4) FEAFIE; 5 MEY - FE(T 2 IHEAEE (1)

(5)

86

(Continued)

(i)  Directors’emolument payable

G) ENEFFH

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2016 2015 2016 2015

2016F 20154 20165 20156

6H30A 12A31H 6H30R 12A318

Group Group Company Company

biN | REE NN AR

Directors’ emolument = =5 260,000 482,192 260,000 482,192

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative investment project (5) EABH L EEKBRSEREER

with related parties

(a) Terminal Expansion Project

@) MuEEETIE

30June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 A30H 201512 A31H

Land Use Right Transfer Agreement and
Investment and Construction Agreement
with Haikou Meilan
— Receivable from Haikou Meilan

for Land Use Right Transfer (Note a-1)
— Payable to Haikou Meilan under the
Investment and Construction

MEOEMFTERE
T b {5 AR R %
BB ER W
— A [A)F M ERUREZ
(P RS R (M ita-1) (28,160,761) (28,160,761)

— FREAEEXNZ

Agreement (Note a-2) RERELESR (Kita-2) 200,367,976 200,367,976
172,207,215 172,207,215
On 26 August 2011, the Company entered into a Land Use Right Transfer 20118 H26H - A ARG AERBLE
Agreement and an Acquisition Agreement with Haikou Meilan in respect REFRISEIEMUGE - MU E TR R R E T
of construction of an international terminal, expansion of west gallery of TRENREMBISEEETED RIS T i
the terminal and a number of auxiliary projects in the Meilan Airport (the o AR R 1 o S MM BB 175 © 120124F12 1
“Terminal Expansion Project”). On 12 December 2012, the Acquisition 128 RETMZ AW AR I - ;AR AR
Agreement was terminated and superseded by an Investment and BOERMNE—BRFTNIREERHZET
Construction Agreement entered into by the Company and Haikou Meilan A o

on the same day.
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7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(5) Significant asset acquisition and cooperative investment project
with related parties (Continued)

(a)
(a-1)

(a-2)

Terminal Expansion Project (Continued)

Pursuant to the Investment and Construction Agreement, in order to
facilitate the construction of the Terminal Expansion Project and the
possession of relevant property ownership certificate(s) as a whole by
Haikou Meilan, the Company will transfer the land use rights for a site area
of 125 acres to Haikou Meilan at a consideration of RMB31,289,734. Up to
the period ended 30 June 2016, the Company has received deposits of
RMB3,128,973 from Haikou Meilan (31 December 2015: RMB3,128,973).

Pursuant to the Investment and Construction Agreement, Haikou Meilan
undertakes that, upon completion of the construction of the Terminal
Expansion Project and before the transfer of the assets of the Terminal
Expansion Project to the Company, Haikou Meilan shall not transfer or
dispose of any assets of the Terminal Expansion Project to any third party,
and upon completion of the construction of the Terminal Expansion
Project and before the satisfaction of the closing conditions of transfer
of the assets of the Terminal Expansion Project to the Company, the
Company is exclusively entitled to operate the Terminal Expansion
Project. The total consideration of the project is RMB1,026,680,000,
including the estimated construction cost of RMB876,500,000 and the
relevant land use rights at a consideration of RMB150,180,000. The
Company shall provide funds to Haikou Meilan according to the progress
of construction of the Terminal Expansion Project. The construction of the
Terminal Expansion Project will be completed no later than 31 December
2015. The above resolution has been approved by the extraordinary
general shareholders meeting held on 4 March 2013.

t BBLRERERRE

SEEBENAARETT)
IR (&)

(5) EXBHBESEERBREERERE

(&)

@) MuEEETIE (&)

(a-1)

(a-2)

RIBRERZRHZEZLOE - AR
AR¥31,289,734 LB MG O XM
BEERAD A 25 A L AE - A
ﬁﬁ"/ilﬂ%%t”'iﬂiﬁklﬁ'ﬁﬁ
TRGREEREMUEZ EEE
M2016F6 4308 + AR TEH&EIJ/EI
EWMIZNOLEARERRARE
3,128,9737¢ (2015%F12A318 : AR¥
3,128,9737C) ©

BIEREAERDE  BOEHEBEE
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&S A AREI026680,0007T *
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B 2 i T&EMR2015F12831H 3 A
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7 Related parties and related party transactions + BHEITBEREREXS @)

(Continued)

(5) Significant asset acquisition and cooperative investment project (5) EAXABH T EENBRSEREZEERE

with related parties (Continued)

(a) Terminal Expansion Project (Continued)
(a-2) (Continued)

The accumulated construction payments made by the Company to
Haikou Meilan up to 30 June 2016 amounted to RMB733,361,200 (31
December 2015: RMB733,361,200), together with the machinery and
equipment purchased by the Company amounting to RMB51,027,934
and capitalized interest of RMB41,922,890, the total investment made
by the Company into the Terminal Expansion Project amounted to
RMB826,312,024, and the remaining construction investment is estimated
to be RMB200,367,976 (31 December 2015: RMB200,367,976).

The construction of the international terminal and the auxiliary projects
were completed and put into use in 2013, the related costs were
transferred to fixed assets of RMB236,748,630 and land use rights of
RMB45,078,000 respectively, totalling RMB281,826,630 (Note 4(6)(b) and
Note 4(8)(b)).

The west gallery expansion project were completed and put into use in
2015 and related costs totalling RMB601,120,441 (Noted 4(6)(b)) were
transferred to fixed assets, which include construction costs incurred by
Haikou Meilan of RMB508,169,617 as well as machinery and equipment
purchased by the Company of RMB51,027,934 and capitalized interest
of RMB41,922,890. Prepayment balance was reduced to zero and the
Company recognized construction payable balance amounted to
RMB56,635,047 as of 30 June 2016
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H =2016F6A308 * AR RE MRS
AFEMEFEINRERRECARK
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R #733361,20000) * EERAR A A
ITEREB R A R#551,027,93470 KX+
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AHEBAE S ARS26312,0247C
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7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(5) Significant asset acquisition and cooperative investment project
with related parties (Continued)

(b)

Terminal Complex Project

+ BERAIBERARRERS @)

(5) EABEB S EENERSIEFRERR
(4%)
(b) ULETAREFE

30June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 A30H 2015512 A31H

Construction payable to be settled EEBPRRESF

through Yangpu Guoxing TR

810,610,402 1,137,483,317

In 2015, the Company entered into a construction service agreement
with Yangpu Guoxing in respect of the construction of Terminal
Complex Project. The budget cost of the Terminal Complex Project
is RMB1,903,874,000. Pursuant to this agreement, the Company has
engaged Yanpu Guoxing to monitor and manage the construction of
the Terminal Complex Project at a service charge of 3% on the total
budget cost.

As at 30 June 2016, the Company has made payments totalling
RMB1,093,263,598 to Yangpu Guoxing according to the construction
service agreement (31 December 2015: RMB766,390,683) (Note 4(10)
@)).

R2015%F » KRR A% & 7 5% uh BT 47
AR BHBRESEARARK
1,903,874,0007T ¢ [A) A B 3 p (3] 63 7t 322

RILAIRABIER FE] T ERRB D
HORAFHREE R TIEERE
TEBREINIRR TXAER
B A4 7 b BT AR & B2 1R & 42 #E30% M) AR
BE -

B E=2016F6 308 @ Z R EH R B
g ANRBE RET R FH R E T
NIEFREBEREE T ARK
1,093,263,5987T (2015912 831H : A
R#766,390,6837T) (MIzEI(10)(@)) °
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+ BERAIBERARRERS @)

7 Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(5) Significant asset acquisition and cooperative investment project (5) EA BB HF EENKERSEFREEH
with related parties (Continued) (&)
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()

(d)

Acquisition

(c)

KEEE

30June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 H30H 2015512 H31H
Equity transfer agreement with MEBOEFEEITN
Haikou Meilan AR i s i fh ok
— Payable to Haikou Meilan under —HRABAERINZ
the equity transfer agreement I i s B X 34,800,000 34,800,000

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Haikou Meilan entered into
an equity transfer agreement pursuant to which, Haikou Meilan agreed
to transfer 100% of the equity interest in Haikou Meilan Airport Assets
Management Co., Ltd. at a consideration of RMB604,800,000. As at 30
June 2016, the Company has paid the consideration of RMB570,000,000
to Haikou Meilan (31 December 2015: RMB570,000,000) (Note 4(10)(b)).

The assets of Hainan Meilan Assets Management Co., Ltd. mainly
includes apron, offices, access road.

Phase Il Expansion Project

On 21 August 2015, Haikou Meilan and the Company entered into
the Investment and Construction Agreement in respect of the Phase
Il Expansion Project of Meilan Airport (“Phase Il Expansion Project”).
Pursuant to the agreement, total budgeted investment of the Phase
Il Expansion Project is RMB13,838 million, the portion of construction
responsible by the Company is estimated to be RMB7,158 million.

(@)

201511 8138 » AAREEFOE
MEIREEZGZ  BOEHAE
ERIMERRSEETERRAA
100%3% # - 1E B A K 604,800,000
JC ° Bl E2016F6A308 * AARIBER
RSO ERINREBERARE
570,000,0007C (2015812 A31H : AR
#£570,000,0007T) (FFEEFE(10)(b)) ©
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TEE -
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R2015F8A21H » AAFEE O ER
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Consolidated structured entities

The Group has consolidated a special purpose entity for the purpose of
providing financing under an ABS arrangement. As the borrower, pledger
and subordinate securities holder under this arrangement, the Group
assessing whether it has control over this structured entity or not. Based on
the purpose and design of the arrangement, the participation of the Group
in the relevant activities, and the consideration of the Group’s exposure to
variability to risk and returns of being the subordinate securities holder, the
Group is determined to be the primarily obligor under this arrangement.
Accordingly, the structured entity has been consolidated in the financial
statements of the Group.

As at 30 June, the ABS external borrowings managed and consolidated
by the Group amounting to RMB950,907,964 (31 December 2015:
RMB1,012,955,163) (Note 4(20)(b)).

Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet necessary to be recognized
on the balance sheet

TREBU/ARKET)

N EOfEB(LER
MAREEAHEENEBLIRA—RA
BEREBNNEERFCEM AKRBEIER
BEEFLERNERA - HEARXRE
SREAEBHZSERILEBREFHEE
B WERZEFCEMMKRILE WK
it AREZ2EZBESCERNBREE
R Z BAEREIERRRESTA AFEE
B R] 2 B i an R e ik O 2 (R R B AN R B 2
ZEEBHCEMNEIZEMEA  BABE
MABHEE -

M20165F6HA30H - A& B & 1B &k & f#f
WEEBHLEIMNERESERTARKE
950,907,9647T (20155F 128310 : A R ¥&
1,012,955,1637%) (F43EME(20)(b)) °

N BRAMXHARSEER
EEOMYTAELEAER LFITOAR
VS

30June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 A30H 2015128318

Terminal Complex Project (Note 7(5)(b)) UhRTAR G BBIEE (MaF£5)1b)) 810,610,402 1,137,483,317

Terminal Expansion Project (Note 7(5)(a)) MUREIRE TIE (Hat+(5)@) 143,732,929 143,732,929
Other capital commitments signed HEBEELmE N NERZ

but not yet recognized BEEEMNBENES H 51,683,650 63,708,628

1,006,026,981 1,344,924,874
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10 Leases

11

92

The future lease payments of the Group's assets held under finance lease

are summarized as follows:

SRBMN/ARETT)

1T #HE
AEEBARANRAABTAE  KRE
LS ESET :

30June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 H30H 015%F12H31H
Within one year —FE AR 39,908,060 39,960,198
One to two years —R =% 39,798,605 51,013,416
Two to three years —R=4F 13,180,873 21,672,649
92,887,538 112,646,263

Financial instrument and risk t—-eMIAREERER
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk AEENKE I EEESESREAR - ™

(primarily foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's major operational activities are carried out in the PRC and a
majority of the transactions are denominated in RMB. As at 30 June 2016,
major non-RMB assets mainly represents the deposit denominated in USS,
totalling RMB2,337,815 (as at 31 December 2015: RMB2,433,077), non-RMB
liabilities mainly represents the borrowings denominated in US$, totalling
RMB1,084,256,902 (as at 31 December 2015: RMB1,357,120,030). The Group
has not entered into any forward exchange contract to hedge its exposure
to foreign exchange risk.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term interest bearing
borrowings including long-term borrowings, corporate bonds and long-
term payables. Financial liabilities issued at floating rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s
long-term interest bearing borrowings with floating rates were mainly
USS-denominated bank loans, amounting to US$139,000,000, equivalent
to RMB921,736,800 (31 December 2015: US$208,993,475, equivalent to
RMB1,357,120,030).

LRE (EERIIERBRMAERER) - 5
FRREBRMRE R - AN EEEH AR EE
ArEIFESRTSEN A ERE - AED
HAREEMBEENECETNTE

AEBHEBEBEUAREETT - K2016
F6A30H  AEBMWETEIFARE R
BEFERUETIENER  HBAR
#2337,8157C (20158 12A8318 : A R #
2433,0777C)  EARBERBBEEZERINU
ETLIMERER - R/ ARKK1,084,256,902
7t (20158128318 + A R #1,357,120,030
TT) o ANEEE I AT S AR R ERIMNE A 49 A
R INE R o

REBOF R R R IKFEEAEHMEM\@
AEHFMRBENRERATBET - 28
%'Jz‘_—(miﬁﬂﬁﬁf@ij&%@ﬁﬁnniﬁﬁumgﬂ

B BEMEHEREeEEArSE@EEA
R EBERERE - 7B2016F6730H @ A&
ERAZSFNEESEFEZRFERUET
FHERIRITIBE N + £ /A3IT139,000,0007T
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Financial instrument and risk (Continued)

These interim financial statements do not include all financial risk
management information and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual

financial statements as at 31 December 2015.

There have been no significant changes in the risk management department

or in any risk management policies since 2015 year end.

Fair value

Based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, the fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

Financial instruments not measured at fair value but disclosed
the fair value of the assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised costs mainly represent
receivables, payables, short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings,
corporate bonds and long-term payables.

Except for financial liabilities listed below, the carrying amounts of other
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value is a reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

T-SRMTARERER @®

mh HARA 75 ¥R

RIARBRBRFEFBRRREN

e BRREREEMBE - U+ B
BHEEREAEEHREZE _T—AF+_HA

=+—Hit

BE-_Z—Fh

FENFEHAERE —HRE -

Ft+t A=t —HBUARKEEE

REBBKEAREERRLEEALE -

+:Qﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ

ﬁﬁ%%%
DRSS NP/
E—ER:
FZER
F=ER:

HEEEXBBEEERMS £
REHABRRE -

BE-ERBABNEEEE
FEEEREXERATBEENR
AE -

HEEEXBEN TSR
AE -

(1) TRAAEETEERFR L EELH
BENERE

N[ A

BAENSREENSREA

BEEEEE f% AR~ EARUR - EHIE

o REfE

BRTRe@EENI  EmAUAR

BNLEE
ZERN o

R RAEFMRHENRE -

RfEESR
EMBENEEEEEAAEE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 A30H 015 12H31H
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
REEE DREME REEE NRfEE
Financial liabilities - TRIBE -
Seven-year corporate bonds 7EHRRIES 795,483,152 888,000,000 794,952,116 888,000,000
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12 Fair value (Continued) +=

(1) Financial instruments not measured at fair value but disclosed (1)
the fair value of the assets and liabilities (Continued)

The fair values of corporate bonds are determined at quoted prices in an
active market and is categorised in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the seven-year corporate bonds is determined by quoted
prices of the Shanghai Stock Exchange on the last trading day prior to 30

AREEMEF @
TURAREETEBHEERELALEELY
BEMNERE (&)

FIEERTRNDAMES  LWERTERN
RERTEAREE  BRE—ES

AE7FHRAREENAABENLESES
RSB AT2016F6 308 2 A& — R 5 B

June 2016. BHEE °
13 Notes to the Company’s financial statements T= AR RME
(1) Long-term equity investments (1) RERERE
30June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30H 2015%12H318
Subsidiaries S R/NG]
— Unlisted companies —3E LM AT 10,477,825 10,477,825
Associates (Note 4(5)) B N T (KaEY(5))
— Unlisted companies —FEEmAH 1,583,756,686 1,210,687,572
Less: long-term equity investments impairment B REFEIR B R EEE (277,825) (277,825)
1,593,956,686 1,220,887,572

There is no significant restriction on the realization of long-term equity

investments.

94

ARRFEERPRESBHEARS) o



EBRERKROGERAR

e — NFHRHmE

Notes to the Financiol Statementsdd 3 13 £ % #

For the six months ended 30 June 2016 ;22016456 30 A 1F6f6E A HARI

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B RIIEERBA] -

13 Notes to the Company’s financial statements

(Continued)

(2) Revenue and operating costs, general and administrative

1= AR BB |RERMEE @)

TREBU/ARKET)

(2) ERXRANERKA  EEEH

expenses
Six months ended 30 June
B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
Revenue BEIA
Aeronautical: MZe 7%
Passenger service charges IR R & 138,621,709 122,498,277
Refund of Civil Aviation
Development Fund RMzERESREMM 114,120,285 97,355,630
Fees and related charges on aircraft
takeoff and landing TR R B E 47,167,369 41,746,577
Ground handling service income T RS & 44,096,553 32,646,686
344,005,916 294,247,170
Non-aeronautical: FEMZE MR ¢
Franchise fee FFEF R SR 156,066,065 134,828,821
Rental income HeWA 20,056,191 20,746,343
VIP room income BEEEWA 10,507,918 7,211,978
Parking fee income EEIHRA 9,256,545 8,586,217
Other income LN 32,788,753 24,157,204
228,675,472 195,530,563
572,681,388 489,777,733
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(2)
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(Continued)

Revenue and operating costs, general and administrative

expenses (Continued)

Operating costs and general and administrative expenses include the

following items:

SRBMN/ARETT)

1= AR BB |RERMEE @)

(2) ERXRAFERKA EEER (#)

EEKANERERTIZHATEEBK

Six months ended 30 June

B Z6H30H L6fE A
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
Employee salaries and benefit expenses ETTENENER 52,028,972 43,617,791
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEENEER 44,227,554 29,477,438
Airport and logistic services fee Hei5 M INEVAR B IRIG B 23,516,159 18,436,472
Outsource labour costs BRKEAEER 18,532,274 11,486,553
Utilities KEE 16,786,990 12,886,142
Repairs and maintenance “wIEE R 15,986,065 9,211,858
Other taxes HahFri1a 5,021,718 5,091,971
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center RMBEFRLFEE 3,208,569 2,710,833
Amortization of land use rights b PR A 8 1,985,881 1,985,881
Travelling expenses EIRE 1,168,203 854,814
Audit fees EitE 726,000 660,000
Others Hih 42,414,800 36,973,576
225,603,185 173,393,329
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